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President’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

FTEBREREEENWR DN

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is pleased to present the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2012 together with comparative figures.
These consolidated financial statements have been
reviewed by the Company’s audit committee.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.04 per share for the year ended 31
March 2012 (the “Final Dividend”). The proposed
Final Dividend together with the interim dividend
of HK$0.10 per share makes a total dividend of
HK$0.14 per share for this year (2011: HK$0.22 per
share).

Dividend warrants will be posted on or about 23
July 2012 to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 13
July 2012.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed on Thursday,
12 July 2012 and Friday, 13 July 2012. In order to
qualify for the Final Dividend, all share transfers
documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, namely Tricor Secretaries
Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
pm on Wednesday, 11 July 2012.
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President’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
TEREREEEBNWMR D@

CORPORATE RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the
Group recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$203,583,000, representing an increase of
approximately HK$163,597,000 or 409.1% from
approximately HK$39,986,000 for the year 2011.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2012 amounted to
approximately HK$102,214,000 (2011: profit of
approximately HK$389,311,000). The decline
in profit of approximately HK$287,097,000 was
primarily attributable to the decrease of gain arising
on change in fair value of investment properties.

The basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 March 2012 was approximately HK$1.22 (2011:
basic earnings per share of approximately HK$4.90).

BUSINESS REVIEW
(i) Property Investment
Hong Kong and Singapore

Turnover of the Group’s property rental for
the year under review was approximately
HK$40,507,000 (2011: approximately
HK$35,327,000), an increase of approximately
HK$5,180,000 or approximately 14.7% over
the last year. The Group’s existing investment
properties comprise mainly residential,
commercial and industrial properties.
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President’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FEREREEBENWR D)

As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s commercial
and residential rental properties leased
approximately 100% and 92% respectively.
The industrial rental properties continued
to maintain a high occupancy rate of
approximately 94%. The building management
fee income was approximately HK$411,000
(2011: approximately HK$314,000).

During the year under review, the Group
completed the acquisition of 9 properties
at a total consideration of approximately
HK$163,462,000, of which 6 of them are
leased to independent third parties for
residential purposes. All such 9 properties
are located in Prince Edward Road West of
Kowloon, Hong Kong. Details of the properties
acquisitions are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 29 April 2011 and 8
December 2011.
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President’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FEREREBENWMR D@

(ii)

People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)

The Group had 100% leased out two blocks of
factory premises and partially leased out four
blocks of dormitories, with a total gross floor
area of approximately 52,624 sq.m. in Huzhou,
PRC. In addition, the construction works on a
new factory block target to be completed by
late of 2012.

The Group regularly reviews the existing
tenant composition and seeks to enhance
its optimum mix. The Group also continues
to replenish its investment property portfolio
by selecting and locating prospective retail
acquisition targets. The Group believes that
a well-balanced portfolio provides a steady
rental income and a good potential for capital
appreciation in the long run.

Property Development

For the year ended 31 March 2012,
total revenue from property sales was
approximately HK$82,875,000.

The Group had a grand opening and cutting
ribbon ceremony of One Victory in October
2011. One Victory is situated at Ho Man Tin
of Hong Kong and is a residential and retail
high-rise building. The travelling time is 5
minutes on road from Mongkok MTR station.
The property is within close proximity to
community centre, where supermarkets, banks
and bus stop are located. The property is
well served by its own network of shops and
restaurants and bars.

(ii)
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President’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FEREREEBENWR D)

(iii)

The Group continues actively seeking
opportunities to replenish and add to its land
bank through acquisitions at public auctions
and by private agreements.

Garment Sourcing and Exporting

The garment sourcing and exporting business
segment was acquired by the Group on 25
October 2011 by increasing its control over
the shareholdings of Easyknit Enterprises
Holdings Limited (“EE”) from 31.70% to
80.89% till 11 November 2011 via (i) acquiring
a total of 61,775,205 EE shares (representing
approximately 11.22%) from an independent
third party at an aggregate consideration
of HK$18,532,000; and (ii) upon the close
of the unconditional mandatory offer made
by the Company to holders of EE shares,
the Company acquired from the market and
the general offer a total of 209,082,479 EE
shares at an aggregate cash consideration of
approximately HK$62,713,000.

In order to restore the minimum public float of
EE as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing
Rules, the Company placed 47,000,000 EE
shares at a placing price of HK$0.27 per
share in January 2012. Such placing has
restored the public float of EE to 27.64%. The
proceeds, raised from the placing, amounting
to approximately HK$12,690,000 net of
relevant expenses were used by the Group as
working capital.

The turnover for this segment contributed to
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012
amounted to approximately HK$76,494,000.

(iii)
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President’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FTEBREREEENWR D

PROSPECTS

Barring unforeseen circumstances, both the global
and local economies are on their long-term paths
to recovery, the Company remains cautiously
optimistic about the economic outlook in Asia and
the healthy development of the Hong Kong property
market.

Looking ahead, the Board believes that the next
financial year is full of challenges but will also
present opportunities to the Group. Management
will stay alert of the dynamic competitive market
conditions and to develop high quality properties to
meet market needs, seeking attractive investment
properties acquisition opportunities. The Group
will deploy its resources carefully to maintain a
balanced growth, so as to maximize shareholder
values and returns. Moreover, we will carry on
with our prudent strategy of maintaining a healthy
cash position to provide the Group with optimum
flexibility to respond to market uncertainties.
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President’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
FEREREEBENWR D)

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had bank
balances and cash amounting to approximately
HK$403,369,000 (2011: approximately
HK$73,851,000). The Group’s gearing ratio (total
borrowings to shareholders’ equity) as at 31
March 2012 was approximately 0.18 (2011: nil).
As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s current ratio
was approximately 9.8 (2011: approximately 10.2)
which was calculated on the basis of current
assets of approximately HK$1,168,143,000
(2011: approximately HK$756,595,000) to current
liabilities of approximately HK$119,084,000 (2011:
approximately HK$73,931,000). During the year, the
Group services its debts mainly through the internal
generated resources.

Placing

On 21 December 2011, Goodco Development
Limited (“Goodco”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a placing agreement
with a placing agent to place, in a fully underwritten
basis, 47,000,000 EE shares to independent
investors at a price of HK$0.27 per EE share. The
aim of the placing was to restore the public float
of EE so as to comply with the minimum public
float requirement under the Listing Rules. The
placing was completed on 4 January 2012 and
the proceeds, raised from the placing, amounting
to approximately HK$12,690,000 net of relevant
expenses were used by the Group as working
capital.

5 %5 [l A
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President’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FEREREBENWMR D@

Capital Structure

During the year, there was no change to the share
capital of the Company. As at 31 March 2012,
the total number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 79,420,403 shares.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 March 2012, the Group has pledged
investment properties of HK$677,500,000 to a bank
to secure credit facilities (2011: HK$655,000,000).

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

On 12 September 2011, Goodco made a general
mandatory offer to EE to acquire all the issued EE
shares at a price of HK$0.30 per EE share. Upon
the close of the unconditional mandatory offer on
11 November 2011, the Company acquired a total
of 209,082,479 EE shares for an aggregate cash
consideration of approximately HK$62,713,000.

Exposure on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

Most of the Group’s revenues and payments are
in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars, Renminbi dollars
and Singapore dollars. During the year, the Group
did not have significant exposure to the fluctuation
in exchange rates and thus, no financial instrument
for hedging purposes was employed. The directors
considered the risk of exposure to the currency
fluctuation to be minimal.
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President’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
FERENEEENWR D @)

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2012 (2011: nil).

Capital Expenditure and Capital Commitments

During the year, the Group spent approximately
HK$875,000 (2011: approximately HK$16,000) on
acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group has capital
commitments of approximately HK$171,850,000
(2011: Nil).

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had approximately
57 employees (2011: 14). Staff costs (including
directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately
HK$15,104,000 for the year under review (2011:
approximately HK$10,524,000). The Group
remunerates its employees based on their
performance, experience and prevailing industry
practice. The Group has set out the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme for the Hong Kong’s
employees and has made contributions to the
stated-sponsored pension scheme operated by
the PRC government for the PRC employees. The
Group has two share option schemes to motivate
employees.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
sincere gratitude to our staff and fellow directors
for their contribution to the Group’s development
and cordial thanks to the continuing support of
our customers, suppliers, business associates and
shareholders.

KWONG Jimmy Cheung Tim
President and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 May 2012
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEZBEE

MR. KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
President and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kwong, aged 69, is an executive director,
president, chief executive officer and authorised
representative of the Company and a member
and chairman of Executive Committee. He is also
an executive director, chairman, chief executive
officer and authorised representative, and a
member and chairman of Executive Committee of
Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited (“Easyknit
Enterprises”). Mr. Kwong was graduated from The
University of Hong Kong in 1965 and was admitted
as Barrister-at-law in the United Kingdom and Hong
Kong in 1970 and 1973 respectively. He has over
30 years of experience in the legal field. He serves
as director of various subsidiaries of the Company
and Easyknit Enterprises. Mr. Kwong was appointed
to the Board in April 2007. In December 2007,
Mr. Kwong was appointed as president and chief
executive officer.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

BEECER @)

MS. LUI YUK CHU
Vice President

Ms. Lui, aged 54, is a co-founder of the Group,
an executive director and vice president of the
Company and a member of Executive Committee.
She is also an executive director and deputy
chairman, and a member of Executive Committee
of Easyknit Enterprises. Ms. Lui has been involved
in the textiles industry for over 30 years and has
extensive experience in design, manufacturing,
marketing and distribution of apparel. She serves
as director of various subsidiaries of the Company
and Easyknit Enterprises. Ms. Lui was appointed to
the Board in September 1994. In January 2006, Ms.
Lui was appointed as vice president. Ms. Lui is the
wife of Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the co-founder of the
Group and substantial shareholder of the Company.
She is the mother of Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, an
executive director of the Company.

MS. KOON HO YAN CANDY

Ms. Koon, aged 27, is an executive director and
authorised representative of the Company since
2010 and a member of Executive Committee. She
graduated from the University of Durham in 2007
with Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and
Politics. She also received her Bachelor of Laws
degree and Legal Practice Course qualification in
2009 from the College of Law, England. Ms. Koon
is also an executive director and a member of
Executive Committee of Easyknit Enterprises. Ms.
Koon is the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, the vice
president of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

EECER @

MR. TSE WING CHIU RICKY

Mr. Tse, aged 54, is a non-executive director
of the Company and Easyknit Enterprises. Mr.
Tse obtained a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Adam Smith University of
America in the United States in 1996. He has
more than 30 years of experience in garment
manufacturing and merchandising. Mr. Tse was
appointed to the Board as an executive director
and vice president in November 2005 and was
subsequently re-designated from vice president to
president and appointed as chief executive officer
in January 2006. In December 2007, Mr. Tse was
re-designated from an executive director to a non-
executive director of the Company, and resigned as
president and chief executive officer.

MR. TSUI CHUN KONG

Mr. Tsui, aged 61, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 2004. He
is a member and chairman of Audit Committee,
a member of Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. He obtained a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from the
Oklahoma City University in the US in 1991 and is a
fellow member of both The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Tsui has over
40 years of experience in the public accounting
profession and the commercial sector, especially the
travel industry. He has experience in the preparation
for the listing of shares on the Stock Exchange and
worked for a few listed companies. Mr. Tsui is now
practising as a public accountant under his own
name.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

BEECER @)

MR. JONG KOON SANG

Mr. Jong, aged 63, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 2005.
He is a member and chairman of Remuneration
Committee, a member of Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee. He is a fellow member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Association of International
Accountants, England. He is also a fellow member
of the Chartered Management Institute, England
and a fellow member of The Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. Mr. Jong is currently the President of
The Association of International Accountants, Hong
Kong Branch, the accountant ambassador of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Honorary Vice President of Accounting
Student Society of Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology. He is also a member of
the Regional Advisory Committee of Hong Kong
Hospital Authority. Mr. Jong has over 40 years of
management experience in the financial, industrial
and property business. He is currently the director
and shareholder of East Rise Corporation Limited
which is a company trading in certified non conflict
African minerals.

MR. HON TAM CHUN

Mr. Hon, aged 77, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2008. He is a
member and chairman of Nomination Committee,
a member of Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Hon is a retired Magistrate and
Barrister. He had been in service with the Hong
Kong Government for more than 39 years. During
1969 to 1973, Mr. Hon was a Crown Counsel in the
Legal Department of the Hong Kong Government.
He was a Judicial Officer in Judiciary from 1975 to
1995 when he retired.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance by emphasising transparency,
independence, accountability, responsibility and
fairness. The Board strives to ensure that effective
self-regulatory practices exist to protect the
interests of the shareholders of the Company and to
enhance long-term shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Company
has applied the principles of, and complied with,
all the code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) except for the following deviation
and the Board considered that the deviation is
immaterial given the size, nature and circumstances
of the Group.

Code provision A.2.1

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim is the president
and chief executive officer of the Company. The
Board considers that the combination of the roles
of president and chief executive officer will not
impair the balance of power and authority between
the Board and the management of the Company
as the Board will meet regularly to consider major
matters affecting the operations of the Group. The
Board is of the view that this structure provides the
Group with strong and consistent leadership, which
can facilitate the formulation and implementation
of its strategies and decisions and enable it to
grasp business opportunities and react to changes
efficiently. As such, it is beneficial to the business
prospects of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE @

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
in relation to directors’ securities transactions. All
directors of the Company have confirmed, following
specific enquiry by the Company, that they
complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2012.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven directors,
with three executive directors, one non-executive
director and three independent non-executive
directors. The composition of the Board during the
year and up to the date of this report is set out as
follows:

Executive directors:

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim —
President and Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu — Vice President

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy

Non-executive director:

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong

Mr. Jong Koon Sang
Mr. Hon Tam Chun
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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The biographical details of the existing directors are
set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors” on
pages 13 to 16 of this annual report.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2012, the
Company complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive directors
with at least one independent nonexecutive director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Board has received from each
independent non-executive director an annual
confirmation of his independence and considers
that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board members have no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships with
each other, except that Ms Koon Ho Yan Candy, an
executive director of the Company, is the daughter
of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, the vice president of the
Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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The Board met four times during the year ended 31 & £201243A31HIIFERN " &
March 2012. The individual attendance records of =& HA4REZ - HRIEELE
the directors at the Board meetings were as follows: EE&&3% 7 LEEMT

Number of

meetings Attendance
Name of directors attended rate
EEME HESBREY HE 2
Executive directors
HITES
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim BRATE 4/4 100%
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu BEHRL 4/4 100%
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy BRI L 4/4 100%
Non-executive director
EHITES
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky wK A 4/4 100%
Independent non-executive directors
BYEHITES
Mr. Tsui Chun Kong BREALE 4/4 100%
Mr. Jong Koon Sang HEESLE 4/4 100%
Mr. Hon Tam Chun BERLE 4/4 100%
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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The Board has reserved for its decision or
consideration matters covering mainly the corporate
strategy, board composition, material transactions
and investments, risk management, internal
control and other significant policies and financial
matters. The Board has delegated responsibility
for day-to-day management of the Group through
the chief executive officer down to the executive
management. The respective functions of the
Board and management of the Company have
been formalised and set out in writing which was
approved by the Board in December 2005. Such
arrangement will be reviewed periodically.

President and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim currently assumes
the roles of both the president and chief
executive officer of the Company. The reasons
for the deviation from the Code provision A.2.1
are explained in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Practices” above.

Retirement and re-election of directors

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that (1)
every director is required to retire by rotation at
the annual general meeting no later than the third
annual general meeting after he was last elected or
re-elected and the directors to retire at every annual
general meeting shall be decided by the Board;
and (2) any director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall
hold office until the next following general meeting
of the Company (in case of filling a casual vacancy)
or until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company (in case of an addition to the Board)
and shall then be eligible for re-election at the
meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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Non-executive directors

There are currently four non-executive directors
on the Board, three of them are independent. All
the non-executive directors of the Company are
appointed for a specific term of 3 years and they
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely
the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Executive
Committee with clearly defined written terms of
reference. Each committee reports back to the
Board on its decisions or recommendations after
each meeting for further discussion and approval,
unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on
its ability to do so.

Remuneration Committee

The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee has been revised in March 2012 in full
compliance with the provisions set out in the Code.

The Remuneration Committee comprises 4
members: 3 independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Jong Koon Sang (Committee Chairman),
Mr. Tsui Chun Kong and Mr. Hon Tam Chun; and an
executive director Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim.
The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee
include (i) to make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of directors and senior management;
(i) to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of all directors and
senior management; (iii) to review and approve
performance-based remuneration; and (iv) to ensure
that no director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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The primary objective of the director remuneration
policy is to attract, retain and motivate the
personnels by providing fair reward for their
contributions to the Group’s performance. In this
context, the remuneration policy is to set the overall
remuneration package at a competitive level and
in a form that permits additional remuneration to
be earned for high performance over a sustained
period. The remuneration packages are determined
with reference to the time commitment and
responsibilities of each individual, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market conditions.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, one
Remuneration Committee meeting was held. The
individual attendance records of the committee
members were as follows:

EEHMHRZIEENERS - %
BRHBAN  BRESARERS
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HZ2012F3A31BIEEER &
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o8 2 HELEHIINT

Number of

meetings Attendance

Name of committee members attended rate

ZEEHEKE HESBRE HE R

Mr. Jong Koon Sang HEELE 1/1 100%

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong REBLE 11 100%

Mr. Hon Tam Chun FEALE 11 100%
Mr. Kwong Cheung Tim BRAEE

(appointed on 22 March 2012) (ZER2012F3 A22H) 1/1 100%

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and
recommended the remuneration packages for each
director and senior management of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2012 for the Board’s
approval.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012, the
main components of the executive directors’
remuneration were directors’ fee, basic salary,
benefits in kind, discretionary performance based
bonus, retirement benefits and participation in the
share option scheme adopted by the shareholders
of the Company in February 2002 (the “Share
Option Scheme”).

The non-executive director and independent non-
executive directors did not receive any discretionary
bonus or other benefits from the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2012. But each of them was
entitled to a director’s fee and was eligible for the
Share Option Scheme subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, no director
was involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Audit Committee

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee has
been revised in March 2012 in compliance with the
provisions set out in the Code.

The Audit Committee currently comprises 4
members: 3 independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Tsui Chun Kong (Committee Chairman),
Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr. Hon Tam Chun; and
an executive director Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung
Tim.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include,
(i) to oversee the relationship with the Auditor; (ii) to
review the interim and annual financial statements
before publication; and (iii) to oversee the Group’s
financial reporting system and internal control
procedures.
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During the year ended 31 March 2012, three Audit
Committee meetings were held. The individual
attendance records of the committee members were
as follows:

Name of committee members

ZEENBEKE
Mr. Tsui Chun Kong REBTE
Mr. Jong Koon Sang HEAESTE

Mr. Hon Tam Chun HEALE
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim  BEAREE
(appointed on 22 March 2012)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Audit
Committee (i) reviewed the reports from the Auditor,
accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, management representation letters,
and management’s response in relation to the
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2011
and the interim results for the six months ended
30 September 2011; and (ii) reviewed the financial
reports for the year ended 31 March 2011 and for
the six months ended 30 September 2011 and
recommended the same to the Board for approval.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the
management and the Auditor the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2012.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established
on 22 March 2012 and has adopted the terms
of reference of Nomination Committee in full
compliance with the provisions set out in the Code.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 4
members: 3 independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Hon Tam Chun (Committee Chairman),
Mr. Tsui Chun Kong and Mr. Jong Koon Sang; and
an executive director Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung
Tim.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a written
nomination procedure specifying the process and
criteria for the selection and recommendation of
candidates for directorship of the Company. The
Nomination Committee will base on the criteria in
the procedure (such as appropriate experience,
personal skills and time commitment, etc) to identify
and recommend proposed candidates to the Board.
During the year, the Nomination Committee did not
hold any meeting.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises all
the executive directors of the Company, namely Mr.
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim (Committee Chairman),
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy.
It meets as and when required between regular
Board meetings of the Company, and operates as
a general management committee under the direct
authority of the Board. Within the parameters of
authority delegated by the Board, the Executive
Committee sees to the implementation of Group
strategy set by the Board, monitors the Group’s
investment and trading performance, funding
and financing requirements, and reviews the
management performance.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the audit
service fee and non-audit service fees paid/payable
to the Auditor were approximately HK$1,775,000
and HK$3,411,000, respectively. The non-audit
services mainly related to review of interim results,
taxation services, preliminary results announcement
and review of the financial information for major
transactions, general offer and placing the shares of
Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Group.
With the assistance of the Accounts Department,
the directors ensure that the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group is in accordance
with the statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The directors also ensure
timely publication of the financial statements of the
Group.

The statement of the Auditor regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 47 and 48.

The Auditor did not report for the year ended
31 March 2012 that there were any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
might cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining
a sound and effective system of internal control
of the Group to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets, and reviewing
its effectiveness. The Group’s internal control
system, including a defined management structure
with limits of authority and segregation of duties
and periodic review by the Board of the operational
and financial reports prepared by the management
or the Auditor, is designed to safeguard assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure
maintenance of proper accounting records for
provision of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publication, and ensure compliance
with relevant laws and regulations. The system
aims to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss,
and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure
in operational systems and achievement of the
Group’s objectives.

The Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control and
risk management of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 March 2012. Recommendations have
been suggested to the management of the Group
in order to enhance the Group’s system of internal
control and minimise operational risk.

The Board is of the view that the Company has
the appropriate accounting systems and adequate
human resources to discharge the financial reporting
function of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2012. Training programmes and budget will be
provided from time to time for further enhancement.
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ERZaRRZERAN  URER
RIHERAGECEE Tt H
BRI NEB 2 AREZERG(R
mEREA TR LD TZEER
B UNEFETHEHNBEEEN
REMRE S BRMBRE) ZRAL
BRNERGREEETSERERET
BEMALE BREEZE 2
ACERARR L AT SE 2 TS B RHE AR Bk
&M WHERT A AEAD KA
Bl - B e ERD EERRERML
FBREESE(BIREYH) 2RE
UERERBIFER)2ERGRRR
AEBAREESZAR -

EEedRE 220126383181
MBTFEAERABELZGKER
BB BRI ETRE - ERANEE
JEBEBRILEZR  URALEEZ
NMEZEZFRFEBERRRERE o

EEERAARABRABENETER
RRANANERABITAEEEZ
2012F 3 A 31 B IEM B HRE TIE o
A B B A 45 5| 5T 21 Ko B B8 R A
{EE—HRE -

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2011/12 Annual Report




Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBRE @

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company values the views of its shareholders
and recognises their interests in the Group’s
strategy and performance. All shareholders are
welcome to the annual general meeting of the
Company, at which directors of the Company will
be available to answer questions from shareholders.
Communication is also provided through the
annual reports, interim reports, announcements
and circulars issued by the Company from time
to time. Shareholders may also contact the
Company in writing or visit the Company’s website
www.easyknit.com for information about the Group
and its activities.

In compliance with the Code, all annual general
meetings shall be called by at least 20 clear
business days’ notice, whilst other general meetings
shall be called by at least 10 clear business days’
notice. All resolutions at general meetings are dealt
with by poll. An announcement on the poll vote
results will be published in the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company following the
relevant general meeting.

BRRZEE

ARBIERERE B R R AR EY
AEERBERE BT - TBRRE
BUOHEARA RRBAFRE - ARQ
AEEHEASRERERR - NAF]
MERIREE 2 Fi - PHERE O
i R ROERRE - IRRIAIAE
HARNERRABESAERARIHE
www.easyknit.com * B HRBEAEE
RHEERZER)

RETETR IERRBFASAMN
ELR20ESXBZBAER - MA
RRAGANED R10HZXE
ZBRAR BRAGLAERER
UREFARR - RRAS®% - 187
2 REER BTSN E T AR A
ZHE -

KEDREEERAT 2011/12 FH




Directors’ Report
EEERE

The directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on pages 49 and 50.

An interim dividend of HK$0.10 per share was paid
to the shareholders of the Company during the year.
The directors of the Company now recommends the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.04 per share to
the shareholders on the register of members on 13
July 2012, and the retention of the remaining profit
in the Company.

EEENIIEREE2012F3A31H
I FE 2 FRPIEEGT AT RE

TEEK

AAAB—REEBRAR - KT
THEBARZ EBEHBNEANTE
HEME T -

RERKRE

AEB 2 XERNF A9 M08 24
AEMBERA -

FRHEEE B 0.10 B TR &4 A
NAIRE * AREIEZEZMN2012
F7H13BRIAREIRE AT 2
RERAKRHMEFR0.04 B TR A
FEARRBIRIGTE o
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Directors’ Report (continuea)

EEERE @

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the percentage of sales from the
Group’s largest customer attributable to the Group
was 30.7%. The percentage of sales attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers combined
was less than 48.4% of the Group’s total revenue.
During the year, the percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and the
five largest suppliers combined were 24.3% and
92.3%, respectively.

None of the directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
has a beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers or customers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately
HK$875,000 on acquisition of property, plant
and equipment. The details of the movements in
property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT
FOR SALE

The details of the Group’s properties held for
development for sale are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FRREBREF

TR AKREZHREFPHAEEZ
EEREL30.7% c AEBREHZAH
BERFAEAEEFAZEER IR
48.4% - REB R AHER NER
H AR RAEER  2RlEAEE
FRZHREREL24.3% 1292.3% °

MEES  NFIBMEANEMRR
(BESMA - BHERRBIRAE% A
PIRASERAHERREPTHER

WE - BERRE

FR - AEB T 47875,0007%8 7T A
WEDNE  BELSE XEEBFR
WE BEREBEEHFE SR
RA MR EMEET7 -

BELERRYE

AEEFELERRDEZHE  #
iR A M RR M 22 -
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Directors’ Report (continuea)

EEERE @

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31 March 2012 by independent professional
property valuers and the gain arising on changes
in fair value of investment properties, which had
been charged directly to profit or loss, amounted
to approximately HK$5,302,000. Details of these
are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
at 31 March 2012 are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders at 31 March 2012 were as follows:

Contributed surplus AR
Accumulated profits Z50a A

REW=

REEZREMEDR2012F 3 A 31
B BB IEEMEGHEMITED
B MREVECATEEHESE
2 W% #5,302,000/8 T HEH#
REBEzZPHIR - BEEFIEENGEH
R MIFE18

FTEHB LA
RATR2012F3A3IB 2T EW
BRAFE NG M BRERN T
37 o

RARZ AR R E
ARAaR2012F3 A31 B At 9k
FTREFEEDT

HK$°000
FET

220,937
913,689

1,134,626
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Directors’ Report (continuea)
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Under the laws in Bermuda, the contributed
surplus account of a company is also available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
(President and Chief Executive Officer)
Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President)
Koon Ho Yan Candy

Non-executive director:
Tse Wing Chiu Ricky

Independent non-executive directors:
Tsui Chun Kong

Jong Koon Sang

Hon Tam Chun

RABZAHDRkF#E

BEAREZEN  —HRAZHA
BEHEETAHRDIK - AW KARE
TSR TG E IR SR 3R B S
HABBRESIEL DK -

(@) ARRIRE R D IKE S EEE
REHBE &

b) ARBIEECAEZRBESED
EMAREBEREEETRA
SRR BR8N o

=

FARBEEARERILL ARRIZE
ESUNNE

HITES

BRI
(LEREETTHAZ)

EEREEE)

B AR

FHITES
GiRN

BUFHITES:
REB
HEE

BB
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Directors’ Report (continuea)

EEERE @

DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 99,
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky and Mr. Hon Tam Chun
will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.

None of the directors has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

The Company has received annual confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive
directors as regards their independence to
the Company and considers that each of the
independent non-executive directors is independent
to the Company.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the directors are set out on
pages 13 to 16 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed
“Connected Transactions” below, there was no
contract of significance, to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

)

RIBARRB 2 2R RISE 99 fF » fK
BEELBREEFRRERNARA MK
RBICBERBFAG LRESE 1F
MRER  URBEEET-

BMEESEARBFTLNAIR—FNA
RIEmEBEDBECEEMERIN)
ZIRIBEH -

ARBIEWEI B BIUIFRITESIK
EURDA B EMIEL 2 FEHE
B MARBRRREBIUIENTE
SHARBMEH KB -

ESZEE

EECREFRBIANANEREIZE
168 °

EERNEHN 2R

RINIRER S | —HRHRESN - K
NAIHEAE B AR EET AR
AEERETERIAERABENE
i M BERA K (NANFEHERE
FANEAKE-—EFHE)
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Directors’ Report (continuea)
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed
“Connected transactions” below, there was no
contract of significance between the Company or
its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries subsisting during or at the end of
the year, and there was no contract of significance
for the provision of services to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2012, the interests and short
positions of the directors and the chief executives
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

ERBRRREAN 2R

SRIXIRER S | —HHRESN - K
NCIERE0) UNCIEE 2 S AR S
B L RMETLERAX(RNEA
—HINFEERKFE) o 4oh - 12
PR 3 H AR AT B B 2 AL B 5T 3L [A)
AR ESHEAE B R R RERE 2
BREW -

EERFETHAERKRG KEHE
Rip 2z Eam

R2012%F3A31H KRRAIEER
T ETHABRARR B o E ] A5
FE(EERBHFLBEBRINITES R
HIE &M 1) EXVED) 2B fn ~ HEERR
MR EHFFEEEREES LBERA
FIRERTEARBATHEZER
MARSH @ HKE LT AR ESET
BHRRGWZESFRI(EEFH] )8
TR BAADR R B R P 2 B oo
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Directors’ Report (continuea)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (continued)

(a) Interests in the Company (long positions):

Name of director Capacity

EEEW g5

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Beneficiary (Note i)

EERkR T EeEXmA (AL

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy Beneficiary of a
(Note ii) trust

BRIR&Z L (Afatii) ErEX 8@

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

Out of 46,609,144 shares, 17,429,664 shares were beneficially
owned by Sea Rejoice Limited which was wholly-owned by Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu. The remaining 29,179,480 shares were registered in the
name of and were beneficially owned by Magical Profits Limited,
which was wholly-owned by Accumulate More Profits Limited
which in turn was wholly-owned by Hang Seng Bank Trustee
International Limited as trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the
beneficiaries of which included Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and her family
members other than her spouse).

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and
a director of the Company, was deemed to be interested in the
shares by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of The
Magical 2000 Trust.

EERTETHRAERRHA RIEEH
BRp 2R

(a) RERQTE 2 (HR)

Approximate

percentage

to issued

Number of ordinary shares

ordinary of the Company

shares held BEEEEALT

KEER ERTER

R &E RONBE DL

46,609,144 58.69%

29,179,480 36.74%
Bt -

(i)

46,609,144 I [ {7 #917,429,664 i ik 17
HEFBERAAERER  ZARDAEE
U2 EHE - % T#29,179,480 KAk 1n
IAMagical Profits Limited 2 %% % 5 & i
HEXMEA - %288 Accumulate More
Profits Limited & & # & + i Accumulate
More Profits Limited B|f1¥E% The Magical
2000 Trust (AR HABREERR T RHA
FRfBLASN 2 RIRK 8 ) 2 {57 AHang Seng
Bank Trustee International Limited 2 %&
5o

BAMZ T (EEHRLTHZRERARART
E£=)EAH B The Magical 2000 Trusts
BAZ—HEH  WEARROFEEER
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (continued)

(b) Interests in associated corporations (long
positions):

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited
(“Easyknit Enterprises”)

Name of director Capacity

BB 5%

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Beneficiary (Note iii)

EERURLL B m A (Hatii)

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy Beneficiary of a
(Note iv) trust

B A& (HiFiv) ErtXam

Notes:

(ii)

(iv)

174,592,987 shares and 223,857,684 shares were registered in the
name of and were beneficially owned by Landmark Profits Limited
and Goodco Development Limited respectively, both companies
were wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. Sea Rejoice
Limited was interested in approximately 21.95% of the issued
share capital of the Company and it was wholly-owned by Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu. Magical Profits Limited was interested in approximately
36.74% of the issued share capital of the Company and it was
wholly-owned by Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn
was wholly-owned by Hang Seng Bank Trustee International
Limited as trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of
which included Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and her family members other
than her spouse).

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and
a director of the Company, was deemed to be interested in the
shares by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of The
Magical 2000 Trust.

EERTETHRAERRA RIEEH
BRp2ER e

(b) REEEE 2 B (FR)

KEEXEEHERL 7
([*&ZE%])
Approximate
percentage
to issued
ordinary shares
Number of of Easyknit
ordinary Enterprises
shares held HkREXE
KEEE ERTER
BRGHEB BRONBEDE
398,450,671 72.36%
398,450,671 72.36%
HifzE -

(il

(iv)

It % B D R B 174,592,987 0% & 9 K
223,857,684/ & 17 » 7 LALandmark
Profits Limited R ERERER R A7 LE
B YHHEERES  tMAXARZE
EWBRAR - £FBRARNRAARZBEE
TRAFEEA21.95% 2 EXMEHEE
i+ 2E%A - Magical Profits Limited
RARBEBITRATHE36.74% 2 1
% m H M Accumulate More Profits Limited
% & # A i Accumulate More Profits
Limited 8] 3 /E/& The Magical 2000 Trust
(ERBZANBRETHRLZTRBEREBIU
Sh 2 Rk B ) 2 {258 AHang Seng Bank
Trustee International Limited 2 &4 °

BEARZ T (EERLZTHLRRATES)
A A&E B The Magical 2000 Trust i A2
—W50  BWRARROFHEEER o
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EERIETHRAERBRLRIEE
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING R# 2% )
SHARES (continued)

(b) Interests in associated corporations (long (b) AHE EBEZER(IFE) @ (&)
positions): (continued)

Wellmake Investments Limited (“Wellmake”) BEREERL 7 ([#Z£])

(note v) (Histv)
Percentage
to issued
non-voting
Number of deferred
non-voting shares

deferred of Wellmake
shares held {HEEC%1T
BEE BIRERE

Name of director Capacity ERIEL EER D

EEEB 5% RO AE B

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Note vi) 2 100%

ERURK T (Bfitvi)

Notes: Wit -

(v)  All the issued ordinary shares in the share capital of Wellmake (v BURATRFCETTAKRZEZLBK
which carry the voting rights were held by the Company. HRAATRA °

(vi)  One non-voting deferred share was held by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu as (viy —RELERECRONAZTERZLIUNER
beneficial owner and the other one was held by her spouse, Mr. BEAGHER M5 —RABEEBEX
Koon Wing Yee. ERAERE -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, B FXFIEEEI - R 2012F3 A
none of the directors or chief executives of the 31H  AAFEEHFETHAEH
Company had any interests or short positions in #mRARAF HEEABHEIE(TER
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the EANHEIEEHIEXVES) 2 &M - 48
Company or any of its associated corporations B HEETHEE DY ALRR TR
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which £ #% % B S (K] 5 352 (& 3B E P17
had been recorded in the register kept by the E7Z:ZMR @ sk BEEEFRRETE
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as  78:3@ &R &) & B &2 7 (E{r] 4 %5 5k
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock %#& o

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Details of the Company’s share option schemes of
the Company and Easyknit Enterprises Holdings
Limited (the subsidiary of the Company) and
movement of options during the year are set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

No options were granted to, or exercised by, the
directors during the year. There was no outstanding
option granted to the directors at the beginning and
at the end of the year.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the
year ended 31 March 2012 was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the directors or any of
their spouses or children under the age of 18, was
granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt
securities of the Company or other body corporate
nor had exercised any such right.

EEREROIES 2N

ARAIRARAMBERAIKEEEE
EAERRABEREEFERRF
A BREEHEN GRS P BRRN T
31

EERNFALERER TR ETERE
A - RAFREILFE &
EYESZBRERARITR -

BRI EXFTRBEEIN - RARIHEE
B RARRNEZ2012F3H31H
L A fa) B P AL 4B BT S (R (AT 2 B
BEARAEZAEBEARARANE
MEMEABRB R HIESHE
m ARTEESHEEAESK
18R IA N 2 FRER T ERHEF AR
BANRIEMEABB ZRANE
BES » HETEERZFERN -
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Directors’ Report (continuea)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS TERR

As at 31 March 2012, the persons (other than the 20123 A31 0 RIEZE 45 K H
directors or the chief executives of the Company) E&HIE336KRERARETFE
who had an interest or a short position in the shares 7 &M ARLE @ HERATRN &
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded RBERMN ZEHFI AR 2 A+ (EE
in the register required to be kept by the Company ZARQTZFEBTHAERINET
under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions: WE:
Approximate
Number  percentage to
of ordinary issued ordinary
shares held  shares of the
Name of substantial shareholder Notes Capacity (long position) Company
BEEE (HARFCEM
IZRRER Wit 55 ROEE EBROGAFAL
Koon Wing Yee i Interest of spouse 46,609,144 58.69%
BXE REEs
Sea Rejoice Limited i&ii Beneficial owner 174,592,987 21.95%
EEBRAT ERBAA
Magical Profits Limited i&ii Interest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 36.74%
EREBA
Accumulate More Profits Limited i Iﬂterest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 36.74%
R B ER
Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited i&iii Trustee 398,450,671 36.74%
fBFEA
Hang Seng Bank Limited jii Interest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 36.74%
BERITER AT REHEE R
The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited i Interest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 36.74%
B ELRTERAA b8ty WA i
HSBC Asia Holdings BV i Interest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 36.74%
REHEE B
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Name of substantial shareholder

IZRRER

HSBC Asia Holdings (UK)

HSBC Holdings BV

HSBC Finance (Netherlands)

HSBC Holdings plc
EEERBRAR

Notes:

Notes Capacity

it

1]

1]

1]

1]

FERR@®
Approximate
Number  percentage to
of ordinary issued ordinary
shares held  shares of the
(long position) Company
BEEE (ARFCES
8% RO%E LERGAEAL
Interest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 36.74%
TR R
Iﬂterest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 36.74%
T AR R
Interest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 36.74%
REHEE 2R
Interest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 36.74%

XA

iri

Out of 46,609,144 shares, 17,429,664 shares were beneficially owned
by Sea Rejoice Limited which was wholly owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.
The other 29,179,480 shares relate to the same block of shares in
the Company. These shares were registered in the name of and were
beneficially owned by Magical Profits Limited which was wholly-
owned by Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn was wholly-
owned by Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited as trustee of
The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu, a director of the Company, and her family members other than
her spouse). Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
and a director of the Company, was deemed to be interested in the
29,179,480 shares by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries
of The Magical 2000 Trust. Mr. Koon Wing Yee, being the spouse of Ms.
Lui Yuk Chu, was deemed to be interested in the 46,609,144 shares by
virtue of the SFO.

() 46,609,144 & B 17 & 717,429,664 % R 17 i 4%
BRARERZER  ZARDHEEHRRI2ERE
B o #2 T #29,179,480 f% A% 17 LA Magical Profits
Limited 2 £ 2B A ERHEE  Z AR DA
Accumulate More Profits Limited 2 &% @
Accumulate More Profits Limited 8| F3 /£ The
Magical 2000 Trust(EXZABRBEEEHRL TR
MrEB B2 RIEK E) 2 {558 AHang Seng
Bank Trustee International Limited 2 & %% « &
ARAT (BERZTHZRARARARNTESR)E
AEHAThe Magical 2000 Trust¥#@AZ—2 &
7 WRBER29,179,480 R M H Az - B
KEFEREEURLTZERE  REEHFRBEK
BliR AR 46,609,144 IR 1 R B RS o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i) Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, being a director of the Company, is also a director of

Sea Rejoice Limited and Magical Profits Limited.

(i) Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hang Seng Bank Limited. Hang Seng Bank Limited was
owned as to approximately 62.14% by The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited. The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited was wholly-owned by HSBC Asia Holdings BV
which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC Asia Holdings (UK).
HSBC Asia Holdings (UK) was wholly-owned by HSBC Holdings BV
which in turn was wholly-owned by HSBC Finance (Netherlands). HSBC
Finance (Netherlands) was a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC Holdings

plc.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, the
Company had not been notified of any interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company which were required to be recorded
in the register kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

FERR =)

Wit (%)

(ii)

(il

ARAIESETIHLTNMALFERAAR
Magical Profits Limited 2 &% °

Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited
REERTERRAIZEZEMBRGE - HB L
BEERTERLDARELEBITERLARES
#62.14% 2 s - BHE LBELRITERAA
HHSBC Asia Holdings BV2& 74  MHSBC
Asia Holdings BVJ5HSBC Asia Holdings (UK)
22 &M B AR - HSBC Asia Holdings (UK)f
HSBC Holdings BV 2 &# 74 ' ifi HSBC Holdings
BVH HSBC Finance (Netherlands)% & # A °
HSBC Finance (Netherlands) J5JE 22 8% A F A
AZ2EMBRR -

BRI EXETHEEIN - R2012F 3 A
318 AREEEMEEMASIA
RRBIREES L EE 5P 336 15
BEAMFE 2 ELMAZ AR RS
KA D 2 BRIOKE o
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS REXS

(a) During the year ended 31 March 2011, the (a) & 22011538318 |F F K

Group received rental income of HK$251,000
from related parties/persons deemed to be
“connected persons” pursuant to Chapter 14A
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange, being entities controlled
by certain relatives of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, her
spouse, Mr. Koon Wing Yee, and her daughter,
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy. Ms. Lui Yuk Chu is a
director of the Company and is also one of the
beneficiaries under a family trust which holds
36.74% (2011: 36.74%) equity interest of the
Company at 31 March 2012. She also holds
21.95% (2011: 21.95%) equity interest of the
Company through an entity wholly-owned by
her.

AEEWREBEAL HZAIR
B ETHRAE14AZIERIBEA
TIZAT(AEEH®RT T RER
BEXKEEERELZRARRE
EEUMT T2 ETHRBAZEH
ZER)HELWA251,0008 T -
EIRULTARRAEEREE
BRE KRB —BRKETR2012
F3A31BEHH AR A36.74%
(20114 : 36.74%) EH T H A
Lo EBNMEBR-—HEEZER
B2 ARMmEBEAEARNRA21.95%
(2011 4F : 21.95% ) fEzS o
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) EEEB‘EE;(E)

(b) In January 2010, the Company entered into a (b) /201018 &KX & HE Xk

consultancy agreement with Mr. Koon Wing
Yee for consultancy services provided by Mr.
Koon Wing Yee to the Company for a fee of
HK$498,000 per annum which shall be payable
in arrears by twelve monthly instalments of
HK$41,500 each. The consultancy agreement
was for a period of one year commencing on
15 January 2010 and expired in January 2011.
Consultancy fee paid and payable to Mr. Koon
Wing Yee during the year ended 31 March 2011
amounted to HK$394,250. In January 2011,
the Company and EE each entered into an
employment contract with Mr. Koon Wing Yee
to act as general manager of the Group and
EE for a salary of HK$50,000 per month. The
employment agreements commenced on 21
February 2011 but may be terminated by either
party at any time by three months’ notice. The
remuneration of Mr. Koon Wing Yee as general
manager of the Group during the year ended 31
March 2012 was HK$939,000 (2011: HK$64,000)
and was included in the “compensation of key
management personnel” in (d) below in respect
of his employment as general manager of the
Group with effect from 21 February 2011.

BELEY—HEBBZ B
ERHEREBERRETAEE
5 F U EY B A3 498,000/ 7T 0 1%
FAMN5008 T 128 e
Z B e m2010F1 A15H
B A I R2011F1AfE i o
HZ2011F3A31HILFED
NEENEBEXELEZERER
394,250/ Lo 2011417 -
ARRRKBEEFRHEBEKEL
ERIS BB - LA A# 50,000
BTERAEAAEERKEE%
TR o ZEAWEB2011F
2HA21BA®B B lEREW
—HETIMABAMMLL - &
Z2011F3A31H FF A E K
EREEARARREEZHE
/939,000 7T.(2011 4F : 64,000
BAT)IREBEBEXKERLLER
2011 F2 A1 AEAAAEE
BB [T EEBAS ZH]
W o
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Directors’ Report (continuea)

EEERE @

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’s shares by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2012.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the
Group is set up by the executive directors of
the Company on the basis of their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice.

The emolument of the directors of the Company
is determined by the board of directors of the
Company after recommendation from Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the time commitment
and responsibilities of individual directors, the
Company’s performance and the prevailing market
conditions.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme
as an incentive to the directors and eligible
employees. Details of the scheme are set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

BE - HEREERD

HZ2012F3A31BIEFER
NEIHETRMNE AR ERE
EYEOEAART ZRH °

FEBE

EE #

AEEREZHSBRRIIAR DRI
TEFRNF KR ERERATE
REDIMETE °

ARAEFZHCIARRAESTE
BRFMEZEE cERK  RERMNE
FZHRBER RS ARBZEE
FRITTREETRE °

ASEERMBLEE - FRYE
ENRERER CRE  srElZFB
HNE AP BRRM LS -
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Directors’ Report (continuea)

EEERE @

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda,
which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events occurring after the
end of the reporting period are set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors
of the Company, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
President and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 May 2012

BRBERE
ARAlz RRARI S B REEDHE

BRBER IR REARABIR
LD R A B R B E A

RENBR2EE

BRABREHMBRCBRFRALZHE
WA M BERRMEI9
RANBERE
BRIEAHLFTARAIZEZEMR

ARBREZMHE  ARA—HE L
MR ZRERTRAZ ARHRE -

73]

ARaFHREERIT ZBRRBFAE
TRERER BEREY « BEBRA
SETATTRARR) Z Z2E -

EEZEH

BRA
TEREETTHARE,

BB 2012F5H21H
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B R

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
EASYKNIT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 164,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong

BXEEBREEARAAZBRER
(REFEZMH L BRAE])

AEEEATERHMDERRINERFE49E
164 EXZEREBERAR(TERAR ) RENE
NEl(mEERE DGR MBERE - WEMBER
KBENR2012F3 A3 AZHEEMBIRRE - &
BEZALFEZRA2ERER SaEaED
KNMGABERER  URBAGHBERBEERHE
HopEREE R o

EENGEMBRRARENTE

ERREZARARBELGIMAGRMLEE
MBRERARBERAGIZREEGEHEER
MAF2EeMBHRE  ERIERESR/MAE
ZNEEER - NEMREL A MBRR RS
RERFE SR AR T B B2 AR -

BEMzEE

B2 EERRERMCEZHZSHEAMBHRE
EHER  YRRARERREFOHEREE
BORMEH S - BRULLASN - ARERIEE A -
BT ERABEATAERMEMALE EeliaiE
EREE - RUICRBEFLEFMRAERMLEE
B EAETERTIE - GLERERBMETE
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B EEN R E )

Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2012,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 May 2012

ERE - WRERMTER  NAERELFES
RHBREEE T FEEMEAHERRL -

ERSRATREFUERERMG A M B RAMEE
BLBBENZBRRE - IEE 2 RRFIRRZ
Yz e - BEFEARNRFRERNERES
MBBRREFAEAERRAZ AR - AFEZEFR
Rl ZHMEEZERRUAEMATELNE
R ABAMEE - URFTEE2BREF - B
WHABHER I AMERZBEERER - BRI
ERIBESMRAZEHBR QB RAES
it AN URFEFRAMBHRR B
BIwmA

BIAMEGE  BAMESZEREERARTBEE 1
REFZEZE RRMER -

=R
BMRE  ZEGAUBBRREBERBUERE
EUEEMAFHRBREEER 2012463 531 H

ZHBHRREBEZBLFRE G RRERE -
YERERBRAGRICBREERZ AR
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BEE A
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2012

EIZ2012F3 731 HILFZ
Continuing operations FECEER
Turnover e
Cost of goods sold and services rendered HHERA
Gross profit E
Other income Hi A
Distribution and selling expenses ESHR A
Administrative expenses THRX
Gain arising on changes in fair value of REWE 2 A THER
investment properties Yegx
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAREERE
investments Z Wz
(Loss) gain on fair value changes of FEEERECATES
investments held for trading (B8 )=
Loss on disposal of associates HERE N R EE
Gain from a bargain purchase RE—1E R 2 s
Share of results of associates ol NI
Finance costs — interest on bank HENR — TERLEA
borrowings not wholly repayable BEEE 2R
within five years BEFRE
Profit before taxation BRI AT A
Taxation charge MIEFAZ

Profit for the year from continuing operations ~ REZHEL L £ 2 KEZEF

Discontinued operations BRIEREER
Profit for the year from discontinued REBRIEEZEB L
operations RELRT
Profit for the year KEEHF

Notes

liif3

32

12

10

13

KEEREEERAT 2011/12 FH

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAT FET
203,583 39,986
(116,170) (2,064)
87,413 37,922
7,482 4,724
(8,321) (3,625)
(32,072) (19,361)
5,302 370,881

= 23,936
(23,133) 2,662
(114,454) -
206,276 -
(17,957) 21,451
(2,995) -
107,541 438,590
(5,327) (49,505)
102,214 389,085
— 226
102,214 389,311

49



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (continueq)

GmeEZHEHWER®

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BHE2012F3 431 HIFFE
2012 2011
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Wizt FET FHET
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hi2E(FZ)HRA
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AftHEREZATE
investments 2 (10,763) 11,440
Release upon disposal of available-for-sale ANEERHERER
investments S - (23,936)
Exchange difference arising on translation of ~ #EEINEE 2,
foreign operations =2 2,491 13,583
Share of translation reserve of associates DEBE AR 2 TE R G 2,060 3,015
Other comprehensive (expense) income AEEzEMmZE ()
for the year LON (6,212) 4,102
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZ 2EWARZ 96,002 393,413
Profit for the year attributable to: RERGENHEE :
— owners of the Company — ARAEEHEEA 96,789 389,311
— non-controlling interests — JRiERR RS 5,425 =
102,214 389,311
Total comprehensive income for the year AEREzEHBARSE
attributable to: AEZE :
— owners of the Company — ARRERFAA 90,070 393,413
— non-controlling interests — JFERER 5,932 -
96,002 393,413
Basic earnings per share BRERET 15
From continuing and discontinued REFBCERBEIL
operations REER HK$1.22 HK$4.90
From continuing operations REFBBECEER HK$1.22 HK$4.90
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R &
At 31 March 2012
R20124%3 31 H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Interests in associates
Available-for-sale investments

Loans receivable

Deposits paid for acquisition of an

investment property

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Properties held for development

for sale
Properties held for sale
Investments held for trading
Trade and other receivables
Loans receivable

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Bills payable
Tax payable

Secured bank borrowings

Net current assets

FRBEE

N - R REE
BENE
B ATER
THHERE
AR
BAREME B
e
BERAEE

mBEE

RIELEERME

RELEDR
REEERE

ER e e e
FERER
RITEHREAE

mBRE

B9 KA RNTIR
EANES

FERHIR
BEMBRITER

MBEEFE

Notes

Hiat

17
18
19
20
21

30

22

23
24
21
25

26
27

28

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$000
FET TET
62,379 2,162
1,632,626 1,165,675
- 182,740

35,530 46,293
5,725 9,300
18,000 =
15,241 =
1,769,501 1,406,170
344,256 538,830
186,757 =
149,009 96,948
31,031 2,451
53,721 44,515
403,369 73,851
1,168,143 756,595
58,768 49,839
3,687 =
39,321 24,092
17,308 =
119,084 73,931
1,049,059 682,664
2,818,560 2,088,834
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continuea)

AR R @)

At 31 March 2012
R20124%3 /31 H

Capital and reserves BRRGEE
Share capital A%
Reserves fE

Equity attributable to owners of the

Company FAEA
Non-controlling interests RS
Non-current liabilities FREEE

Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBRE

Secured bank borrowings BEMBETEE

Notes

Hiit

29

30
28

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$000
FET TET
7,942 7,942
2,118,319 1,954,689
2,126,261 1,962,631
164,392 =
2,290,653 1,962,631
166,436 126,203
361,471 =
527,907 126,203
2,818,560 2,088,834

The consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 164 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21

May 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
BRR
Director

EF

Lui Yuk Chu
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERGBER

For the year ended 31 March 2012

EZE 201243 /31 AILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
ROARRHEARE
Investment Property Non-
Share Share Capital  Translation Special  Contributed  revaluation  revaluation Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
K& hg
Bk RftEE EAGRE Eigf  RREE  BABR®  EfHE  EfEE  ZHE B8 FERER 48
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000
71 7ET T8 781 T b7 71 713 713 71 AT AT
(note g) (note b) (note ¢ (note d)
(Hita) (Hitb) (Hite) (Hitd)
At 1 April 2010 201054418 7,942 218,330 196,565 1917 9,800 220,937 39,044 25,669 889,018 1,615,282 - 1,615,282
Change in farvalue of ~ AIEHEREY
avalable-for-sale AYESE
investments - - - - - - 11,440 - - 11,440 - 11,440
Released upon disposal ~ EFAHHEREER
of available-for-sale g
investments - - - - - - (23,936) - - 23,936) - (23,936)
Exchange differenceon ~ AEBIEEZEN
translation of foreign R
operations - - - 13,583 - - - - - 13,583 - 13,583
Share of translation ARBEREZER
reserve of associates 1 - - - 3,015 - - - - - 3,015 - 3,015
Profitfor the year FEREA = = - - - - - - 389,311 389,311 - 389,311
Total comprehensive REEZRENA
income (expense) for (Ax)agE
the year - - = 16,598 = = (12,496) = 389,311 393,413 - 393,413
Dividend R - - - - - - - - (@064 (46,064 = (86,064
At 31 March 2011 and RONMEIANA
1 April 2011 R2011E
4A18 7,94 218,330 196,565 24,575 9,800 220,937 26,548 25,669 1,232,265 1,962,631 = 1,962,631
Change n fair valug of I EREZ AT
available-for-sale 29
investments - - - - - - (10,763) - - (10,763) - (10,763)
Exchange differenceon ~~ #E 51287
translation of foreign EXZR
operations - - - 1,984 - - - - - 1,984 507 2,491
Share of translation AeBERAZ
reserve of associates EiGE - - - 2,060 - - - - - 2,060 = 2,060
Proft for the year HERR - - - - - - - - 9,789 9,789 545 102014
Total comprehensive REEZ2ERAR
income (expense) for (Fx)eE
the year - - - 4,004 - - (10,763) - 96,789 90,070 5,932 96,002
Acquisition of subsidiaries  WENEAT
(note 3) (%) - - - - - - - - - i T ]
Acquisition of addtional  MENBLE 2 E)h
interests in s
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 91,082 91,082 (129,339) (38,307)
Dividend k& = = - - - - - - (17472) (17472) - (17,472)
- - - - - - - - 73,560 73,560 158,460 232,020
At 31 March 2012 R201253A318 7,942 218,330 196,565 28,619 9,800 220,937 15,785 25,669 1,402,614 2,126,261 164,392 2,290,653
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
FEEREERW@
For the year ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

Notes:

(@)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from the

reduction of the share capital of the Company in October 2006.

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company and the
nominal value of the share capital and share premium of the companies
now forming the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation prior to the

listing of the Company’s shares in 1995.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising from

the reduction of certain reserves of the Company in August 2004.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group was arisen from (i) the
gain on revaluation of certain leasehold properties of the Group, and (ii)
share of the gain on revaluation of prepaid lease payments and property,
plant and equipment of the Group’s former associates, both arising from
the transfer of the Group’s leasehold properties or associates’ prepaid
lease payments and property, plant and equipment to investment

properties in prior years.

Mt -

(d)

AEE 2 ERFHRERER 2006 F 10 A& AHIH
FEEAE 2R

AEBEZHRIRERRAND RS ETRATERR
RAKRAEE(REARBRMBE1995 F A2
SEEH)BTSARIZBABRERBRNEELE
o

AKE 2 BABBFRRARFIR 20044 8 AR
ETREIER

AREMEERRFERELE () AREETHRONE
ZEBRER)DEASE S E AR ANHA
EFERYE  BEEREEL RS - HRER
BEFEAREZBONEIHE AR CANEE
FEENE  BERRBEREREMER -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= R~ —§
GmEBRERER
For the year ended 31 March 2012
EZ20124#3 431 HIFFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year
Adjustments for:

Income tax recognised in profit or loss

Share of results of associates

Interest income

Interest expense

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Dividend income from listed investments

Gain arising on changes in fair value of
investment properties

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Unrealised loss (gain) on fair value changes
of investments held for trading

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Loss on disposal of associates

Gain from a bargain purchase

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Increase in properties held for development for
sale

Decrease in properties held for sale

Increase in investments held for trading

Decrease in inventories

Decrease in trade and other receivables

(Increase) decrease in loans receivable

Decrease in bills receivable

(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables

Increase in bills payable

Cash from (used in) operations

REGEXHLATRE

RERRA

BATHEE :
REEHER 2 FEH
DEBERARE
MBBA
MEFX
nE - BERRBINE

FHREZBREMA

RENMEZATERELY

W
HEMHLERE W

FEBERA, ATERHZ

RERER )

HENE  HERREZER

HEBENRZER
RE—BHERE e

LEELEPNCHERERE

FHELERRMZEM

2

fit
BIEE
FERD
g S REMERTERD
FERER (B MRS
ERZERD

B 5 REMERFECRD)
ERZEEM

MR
RSN

D

1

RE(RR)BREZRE

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
102,214 389,311
5,327 49,505
17,957 (21,451)
(2,590) )
2,995 =
927 91
(4,300) (3,959)
(5,302) (370,881)
- (23,936)
22,645 (2,662)
- 98
114,454 =
(206,276) -
48,051 16,113
(63,230) (138,225)
43,733 -
(97) (24,344)

- 945
33,403 5,610
(5,631) 15,385
647 =
(28,551) 19,001
3,687 -
32,012 (105,515)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
GEBRERER®

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BHE2012F3 431 HIFFE
2012 2011
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
st FEr FAL
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BARANEH = (367)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded REBANGH 1 193
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BRRECXMEH (1,340) -
Overseas tax paid B8R (341) -
Dividend received from investments held for HEEERE ZEWARE
trading 3,098 2,212
Net cash from (used in) operating activities RE(BR)E2ES 2 REFE 33,430 (103,477)
Cash flows from investing activities REBRBED RENE
Acquisition of subsidiaries YEERB AR 32 176,112 -
Interest received FEWA 2,590 3
Dividend received from available-for-sale AREERE BN
investments R 1,202 1,747
Acquisition of investment properties BARENME (164,031) -
Acquisition of additional interests in associates ~ UUEEEES D A] 2 EIMER (21,694) -
Deposits paid for acquisition of an investment BARENFZENERS
property (18,000) =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BANE  BERRE (875) (16)
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREMS 2 F1E57E
properties - 87,960
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEMREEREZETE
investments - 37,379
Capital contribution to associates FETHE AR = (20,226)
Net cash (used in) from investing activities (BR)REREED A FHE (24,696) 106,847
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Consolidated Statement of Cash FIows (continued)

= Do gl — 1§ —
mERERER®
For the year ended 31 March 2012
EZ20124#3 431 HIFFE

Cash flows from financing activities

Bank borrowings raised

Proceeds on disposal of partial interests in
subsidiaries without losing control

Acquisition of additional interests in
subsidiaries

Dividends paid

Repayment of bank borrowings

Interest paid

Net cash from (used in) financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the
year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year,

represented by bank balances and cash

ARBERD R e
SERTER
ERBXENBRRENZBERT
hE RS PSR
KENBLRARMES

RE(AR)BEERS RS FE

RERFARSENOAD)
et
FRehERAE

B

NEERRD S

s

FRATRERAE -
ERTERIAE

2012 2011
NOTE HK$000 HK$'000
/i3 FET FET
389,400 -

12,536 -

(50,843) -

(17,472) (46,064)

(10,621) -

(2,995) -

320,005 (46,064)

328,739 (42,694)

73,851 116,555

779 (10)

403,369 73,851
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
B2 2012F 3731 HIFFE

1. GENERAL

Easyknit International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability. Its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate

Information” section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$” or “HKD”), which is the functional currency

of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal

activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 37.

—REH

KEEREBRERAR(ARADERRE
EMRLAZHRERAR - ARNDEES
BMERXHMABRAB (B ) ERLM -
ARAZEMPERBI R T EEEMEE
RAEHIARER | —HARE -

el BHREAE®RAE LI EHKS] X
[HKD]) - MRAKESARRZNEE -

ARA—HREZERAT  KNABZHE
DREBWEZRBCHMNMEST -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mEMBRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
EZ20124#3 431 HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Group”) have applied, for the first
time, the following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which
are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on 1 April
2011.

Amendments to HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2010
HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009)  Related party disclosures

Amendment to HK(IFRIC¥) Prepayments of a minimum funding
— INT 14 requirement
HK(IFRIC) — INT 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with

equity instruments

*

IFRIC represents the IFRS Interpretations Committee.

The application of the above new or revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material effect on the amounts reported
in these consolidated financial statements and/or disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new or revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of financial
assets'
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting financial

assets and financial liabilities*

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 9 and transition disclosures®

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments®

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B ERM T

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements*

HKFRS 12 Disclosures of interests in other
entities’

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurements’

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of financial statements

— Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income®
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying
assets”
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee benefits*

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate financial statements®

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in associates and joint

ventures'

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities®

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping costs in the production phase

of a surface mine*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification

and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

e HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that
are within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In
addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income

generally recognised in profit or loss.

2.

FERFIER KB 2 B BIME
REEA(BFEHBREE
Bl 1))

BERMBBREEUFIORISMTA

72009 F 8 2 BB M #5HE 2RI % 95 3
AEBEEDBRTEZHMRE - N20104F
REFT EEHBRELNEIRBREER
BEZDBERENRIUBRRZHTE

BB B RELERNE N 2 F Z 48 E 5 1
N

o FEARAMBBESREAFIOFRTEELS
ATEREIR SR T A - MR MG
EIRBEAZHAECERSREERR
HRRBEKAL R FETE - AfEM
5 ANAKKANREREZEBE
ARFEE  URAEHHREREERE
BReRHMREEASAELNS ZE
BRE  —RREER ST IR RIZEH
ARG B - AR EHRE RRAK
BOREREBAREATEE - It
o REBEMBREERER &
BRI 1 AT RUE R B LA E A 2 [ R
AZFBARE (LHFFHERE) 2 HEK
AFEED M- RENESAERR
BIRA -

KEEREEERAT 2011/12 FH

61



62

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MBRRWE @

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

(continued)

e The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities
relates to the presentation of changes in the fair value of a
financial liability (designated as at fair value through profit
or loss) attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities
that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s
credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as at fair

value through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (continued)

Key requirements of these five standards that are relevant to the

Group are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
separate financial statements” that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK (SIC)-Int 12 “Consolidation —
Special purpose entities”. HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of
control that contains three elements: (a) power over an investee,
(b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns. Extensive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex

scenarios.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general,
the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive

than those in the current standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is permitted
provided that all of these five standards are applied early at the

same time.

The directors of the Company anticipate that these five
standards will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1 April 2013 and
the application of these five standards may have no significant
impact on the results and financial position of the Group.
However, the application of HKFRS 12 may result in more

extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
This standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to
both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in
the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
currently required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7
“Financial instruments: Disclosures” will be extended by HKFRS

13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the annual period beginning 1 April 2013 and may affect the
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and
result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income”

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income
section such that items of other comprehensive income
are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive

income is required to be allocated on the same basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when

the amendments are applied in the future accounting periods.

Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred tax — Recovery of
underlying assets”

The amendments to HKAS 12 provide an exception to the
general principles in HKAS 12 that the measurement of deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities should reflect the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the entity expects to recover the carrying amount of an asset.
Specifically, under the amendments, investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model in accordance with
HKAS 40 “Investment property” are presumed to be recovered
through sale for the purposes of measuring deferred taxes,

unless the presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I EL R AE )

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred tax — Recovery of
underlying assets” (continued)

The amendments to HKAS 12 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2012. The directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of the amendments to
HKAS 12 in future accounting periods may result in adjustments
to the amounts of deferred tax liabilities recognised in prior
years regarding the Group’s investment properties. The directors
of the Company are in the process of assessing the impact on
application of these amendments to HKAS 12 and the directors
of the Company anticipate that these amendments will have an

impact on deferred tax liabilities of the Group.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the results and

the financial position of the Group.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,

as explained in accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and

by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
EZ20124#3 531 HILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating

policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition or

up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately

from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests

having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I EL R AE )

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity

and attributed to owners of the Company.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as

incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the

liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
EZ20124#3 531 HILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquire (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase

gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is

made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but

is not control or joint control over those policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I EL R AE )

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Interests in associates (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the

investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Interests in associates (continued)

Where a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of interests in the associate that are not related to

the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of

business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and

title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have
been completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated

statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I EL R AE )
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
EZ20124#3 431 HIFEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Dividend income from equity investments is recognised when

the Group’s rights to receive payment have been established.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction in
progress) are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own
use purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost
less recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress
is classified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their

intended use.

If an investment property becomes an item of property, plant
and equipment because its use has changed as evidenced
by commencement of owner-occupation, the fair value of the
property at the date of change in use becomes the property’s

deemed cost for subsequent accounting.

The Group transfers a property from property held for
development for sale to property, plant and equipment when
there is a change in use to hold the property for owner-
occupation rather than for sale in the ordinary course of
business. The carrying value of the property at the date
of change in use becomes the property’s deemed cost for

subsequent accounting.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in

which the item is derecognised.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I EL R AE )

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or

for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure, except for the properties
transferred from property, plant and equipment, which are
measured at fair value at date of transfer. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property are included in

profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

The Group transfers a property from property held for
development for sale to investment property when there is a
change in use to hold the property to earn rentals or/and for
capital appreciation rather than for sale in the ordinary course
of business, which is evidenced by the commencement of an

operating lease to another party.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the

period in which the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
BHZ2012F3 31 HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for development for sale are classified as current

assets and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties, including
purchase costs of the properties for development and
development costs, are capitalised and included as properties

held for development until such time when they are completed.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and are
classified under current assets. They are stated at the lower of

cost and net realisable value.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group, which
comprises operations and cash flows that can be clearly
distinguished, operationally and for financial reporting purposes
from the rest of the Group, and has been disposed of, or is
classified as held for sale, and either (a) represents a separate
major line of business or geographical area of operations, (b) is
part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations or (c) is a

subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I EL R AE )

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss are recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount

on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or

losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated as at

FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I EL R AE )

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, loans receivable and
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses

(see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL,

loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in investment revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss

(see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been

impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its

cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original

effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and loans receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written

off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss in subsequent
periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment
loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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E2201243 531 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, bills

payable and secured bank borrowings are subsequently

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded as the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in other comprehensive income is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment (other than intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss

is recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I EL R AE )

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss

for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to

non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted

by the end of the reporting period.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that

affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in

the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available

to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I EL R AE )

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to

recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or

loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense

over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building
are considered separately for the purpose of lease classification,
unless the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, in which case, the entire lease
is generally treated as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment. To the extent the allocation of
the lease payments can be made reliably, leasehold interests in
land are accounted for as operating leases and amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties under the

fair value model.

Retirement benefit scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit scheme,
state-sponsored pension schemes operated by the Mainland
China (the “PRC”) government or the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are charged as expenses when
employees have rendered services entitling them to the

contribution.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I EL R AE )

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

B ZE20124F3 H31 HIFFE
4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

(a) Impairment allowance on loans receivable

The amount of the impairment of loans receivable is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. A considerable amount of judgment is
required in estimating the expected discounted future
cash flows. If the actual future cash flows are less than the
original estimated cash flows of loans receivable, additional

allowances would be required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
EZ20124#3 531 HILEE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(b)

Impairment loss on properties held for
development for sale/properties held for sale

Management reviews the recoverability of the Group’s
properties held for development for sale/properties held for
sale amounting to HK$531,013,000 (2011: HK$538,830,000)
with reference to current market environment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets may exceed its net realisable
value, as appropriate. Appropriate write-down for estimated
irrecoverable amounts is recognised in profit or loss when
the net realisable value is below cost. The estimates of
net realisable value are based on the evidence available at
the time the estimates are made, and the amounts of the
properties held for development for sale/properties held
for sale are expected to realise or recover. Actual realised
amount may differ from estimates, resulting in a decrease
or an increase in the net realisable value of the properties
held for development for sale/properties held for sale and
additional write-down or additional reversal of impairment

loss previously recognised may be required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

B ZE20124F3 H31 HIFFE
5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of secured bank
borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as raising of bank

borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mEMBRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
EZ20124#3 431 HIFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6. EMIA

a. Categories of financial instruments a. &MIAZER
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including cash ERRkEGE(BERS
and cash equivalents) RERBRE)
— Trade and other receivables — B REMEWFIA 23,186 2,075
— Loans receivable — EWER 59,446 53,815
— Bank balances and cash — RITER KRS 403,369 73,851
486,001 129,741
Fair value through profit or loss BATEGAER
— Investments held for trading — BEEERA 149,009 96,948
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESmEE
— Available-for-sale investments — A ERE 35,530 46,293
Financial liabilities EHMEE
Amortised cost IR
— Trade and other payables — B REMEMNFIA 35,262 20,931
— Bills payable - ENEE 3,687 -
— Secured bank borrowings — HEAETER 378,779 -
417,728 20,931
KEERERERAT 2011/12 F8H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B ERM T

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

B ZE201243 731 HIFFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, investments held for trading, trade
and other receivables, loans receivable, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, bills payable and
bank borrowings. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure that
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to bank balances, bank borrowings and
variable-rate loans receivable. The Group is also
exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate loans receivable. The Group has not used
any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to
such interest rate risk, however, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary action when significant interest rate

exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on financial
liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate (“HIBOR”) arising

from bank borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBRRME @

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

EZ20124#3 531 HILEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. €I A

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. PXEMERBERBEZ)

(continued)

Market risk (continued) T EE(E)
() Interest rate risk (continued) () FIEER(E)
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
balances, bank borrowings and variable-rate loans
receivable. The analyses were prepared assuming
these balances outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. 10 basis
points increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates. If interest rate had been 10 basis
points higher or lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 March 2012 would decrease or increase by
HK$25,000.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure

during the year.

No sensitivity analysis has been presented for the
year ended 31 March 2011 as the Group’s exposure

to interest rate risk is not significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B ERM T

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

E2201243 531 HILFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. €M I He
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. PXEMRERBERBEKZE)
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)  Currency risk

Certain subsidiaries of the Company have sales
denominated in currencies other than their functional
currencies, which exposes the Group to foreign
currency risk. All of the Group’s purchases are

denominated in the group entities’ functional currency.

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign

LT G

(i) REER

ARARRIETHEAR  AHEE
DIBEE AN BRESIE - BfE
AEEAZIERR - AEEMA

REONSEERZREE
’T o

SEERNESHARAINETIE

currency denominated monetary assets at the end of SHEEZGEENT
the reporting period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE =i
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TFET FET FET
Renminbi (“RMB”) AR 171 - -
United States dollars 37T
(“USD”) 55,359 3,057 86
Euro BT 10,199 - -
HKD BT 87 — -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mEMBRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
EZ20124#3 531 HILEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the exchange rate
risk on HKD against RMB, USD and Euro for the

foreign currency denominated monetary assets.

As HKD is pegged to USD, the financial impact on

exchange risk is expected to be insignificant.

The following table details the group entities’
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in
functional currency of the relevant group entities
against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates
an increase in profit where functional currency of
the relevant group entities weaken 5% against the
relevant foreign currency. For a 5% strengthening
of functional currency of the relevant group entities
against the relevant foreign currency, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the profit, and
the balances below would be negative. No sensitivity
analysis was presented as at 31 March 2011 as the
management considered that the financial impact was

insignificant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B ERM T

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)  Currency risk (continued)

6. BT H®)

b. H¥EREEREREEE)

LT G

(i) EEER(E)

Sensitivity analysis (continued) BREDT(E)
RMB Impact Euro Impact
ARBZZE Brizsg
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Increase in profit Yo Al N 9 - 510 -

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy to eliminate the currency exposures.
However, the management monitors the related
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposures
should the need arise. In management’s opinion, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the currency
risk as the exposure at the end of the reporting period

does not reflect the exposures during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBRRME @

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

EZ20124#3 531 HILEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. €I A

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. PXEMERBERBEZ)
(continued)
S mE(E)

Market risk (continued)

(iii)  Equity price risk (iiy)  FEFETSE R

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk profiles
and the Group has a team to monitor the price risk
and will consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise. The Group’s equity price risk is
concentrated on equity securities listed in Hong Kong
and these investments are diversified into several

different industries.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the end

of the reporting date.

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified
as investments held for trading had been 10% (2011:
10%) higher/lower, profit for the year ended 31 March
2012 would increase/decrease by HK$12,442,000
(2011: HK$8,095,000) as a result of the changes in fair

value of investments held for trading.

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified as
available-for-sale investments had been 10% (2011:
10%) higher/lower, the investment revaluation reserve
would increase/decrease by HK$3,553,000 (2011:
HK$4,629,000) as a result of the changes in fair value

of available-for-sale investments.

BEAKERER EMBAE S -
BEAREATELZERER - B
BEZRFETRARARCESFRE
HENEEZER  ARETAA
BREERRRERRRKERE
FEREHZEAR - AEEZE
FERARETREL LHBA
B MESREEDBETRT
@,

BREAT

U THREED T RRENREHR
PR 2 EREREREE o

WMIERIEEBRE 2 ETRA
BHITAEBRLEA/TH10%
(20115 :10%) - HIEEER
BRTEZEHEEREZF 2012
F3ANBLEFERMEM R
112,442,000% (20114 :
8,095,000 57T) °

WS ER SR E 2 ERAHE
(T AEREATH10% (2011
F:10%) IHHERERATE
ZEBAEBIRESHEEEM
/B 3,553,000 TC(2011 4 :
4,629,000757T) ©

KEEREEERAT 2011/12 FH

97



98

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B ERM T

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations
at 31 March 2012 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as

stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group had concentration of credit risk in relation
to loans receivable from a few borrowers amounting to
HK$59,446,000 at 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$53,815,000).
The largest borrower of the Group by itself and together
with the other four largest borrowers of the Group
accounted for approximately 16% and 46% respectively
(2011: 18.6% and 62.0% respectively) of the Group’s loans
receivable at 31 March 2012. At 31 March 2012 and 2011,
all loans receivables are neither past due nor impaired
and the borrowers are assessed to have satisfactory
credit quality. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management has reviewed the recoverable amounts of
the loans receivable regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk on loans receivable is significantly

reduced.

The Group also had concentration of credit risk as
the Group’s trade receivables as at 31 March 2012 of
HK$16,575,000 (2011: HK$675,000) was due from a few
customers. At 31 March 2012, all trade receivables were
not yet past due except for approximately 4% (2011: nil) of
these trade receivables were past due but not impaired at
the end of the reporting period. The management considers
that the credit risk of these trade receivables is minimal as

all are with long business relationship.

¢RI R

HHEAREZER/REERE)

EERE

W 5 REBITIN2012F3A318E
AEPEERSREECER QXL
BAAX 2 &mEERB AGE M BERK
REMFzZEEEREE -

AEERBERREEMERAR2012
F3H31H 2 & 559,446,000 % 7T
(20114 : 53,815,000 L) 2 EW &
RZEFEERR AEBZ&HKAE
A R R E A 79 42 B K AE KA 2 BILAT
HAREER2012463A31 B 2 B E
H16% K 46% (20114 = 9 F118.6%
% 62%) o 720124 K 201143 A 31
A EERRERERABHIRE - M
ZEBRAZEEERTIRRE - A
CZEERR  BEEEDTHENEKR
ERZAKES5E  URERATKE S
BHRHRERBERE - Bt mm
EERRAEEREBURERZEER
BRBRD o

%2012¢3ﬁ31 B AEETAEEHF
ZEERRE  AAEE B 5 EKHIE
16,575, 000;% 76(2011 4 : 675,0007%
T)REENER - RRREBRL4%
01 : B)ZEHRUFKIAC BH
BARBMESN - B2012F3 318« T
BEESRERRZENRBR  ERERS
ZEEHRBREZ EERBBERS
HHBERAEBBIE -
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

E2201243 531 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. €I A

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company continuously monitor the level of exposure to
ensure that follow-up actions and/or corrective actions
are taken promptly to lower exposure or even to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the management has reviewed
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk on trade receivables is significantly

reduced.

In addition, the Group has credit risk on its liquid funds
at the end of the reporting period. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the credit risk on liquid funds is
limited because majority of the counterparties are banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-

rating agencies and banks with good reputation.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations. The management also monitors the
utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance with loan

covenants.

At 31 March 2012, the Group has available unutilised bank
loan facilities of HK$60,000,000 (2011: HK$389,400,000).

HHEAREZER/REERE)

EERE(E)

RRECERR ALFEESRHER
ERBKF - ARRRERRRER,
FRETBHAREZEARIEZWRE R
HIER - loh EREEEHNBRES
AZERESEE  UBEAIREE
BARAAMEBERE - At - ARF
EXRAREEARESRUFEZEE
RBEARARD

o AEBERBERRERBDES
EERR - ARREERR RPES
ZEERBAR - BRBHR ST HIK
BEREETARBIAREERERY
EBZHIT

HEEZEE

ARBDECRRERME  FEEZE
BEERNES—ERKFERRAZE
ERFERRENRARE L LEMHMT -
EEENERER HAREREET
MBS -

201263 A31H » "EBE v K& A
$R1T{= 5% Z £ 60,000,000 7 7T (2011
F : 389,400,000/57T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

B E2012F3 531 HILEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6. BT H®)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. PXEMRERBERBEKZE)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REELER(E)
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRANAEB Z S REBZEBREL
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non- FIHAEAMR - BiETESRAENS @ &
derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up RIEARS B Z KR &2
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities BrepEeBERTRRERETT °
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay.
Liquidity risk tables BB Z AR
Weighted
average Total Carrying
effective undiscounted amounts at
interest rate Lessthand 3 months to cash flows 31 March
nEFH months 1year 1 - 20years AERE R3A31A
1k SR3@A  3EAEIE 1E0F REAH ZREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% FEn FiEr FEr FEr 77
2012 2012F
Non-derivative financial ~ #fi4 2MEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables  E5 Rt ENFHE NA FER 31,317 3,945 = 35,262 35,262
Bills payable ENZE NA FER 3,687 - - 3,687 3,687
Secured bank borrowings  BEAHRTEE 13 5,530 16,589 406,599 428,718 378,779
40,534 20,534 406,599 467,667 417,728
2011 PITRE:S
Non-derivative financial ~ #fi42REE
liabilities
Trade and other payables 5 RE i EFZUE NA 7iEf 10,366 10,565 - 20,931 20,931
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

C.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

e the fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid

prices; and

e the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash

flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate to their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based

on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for

identical assets or liabilities.

£RTHEs

APME

tREERERAGBCATEZEEN
T

o ARERRKERRETEEE
SREEZRTENZENS LA
W HEMET &

s HteRMEENERABZAVE
AR EREX CEERR - R
BRARSRENNMMET

ARARIEZRR - NEBHKARINEE
BHERRCEREENERABIRA
EERE QN FEMRT

RESMBMRRRER 22 FEF

=

TRE/RIIRERRARFEAEZ
SRITALN  REUBEIAFER
BRRF1IZIR -

+ B1RATENEDRAANEE
N ERERT SR K REE
1815, -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

C.

Fair value (continued)

6. BT H®)

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived

from inputs other than quoted prices included within

Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived

from prices).

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived

from valuation techniques that include inputs for the

asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data (unobservable inputs).

DVEE)

F2MAFEFEDREEXAR
A EZ(AERER) HEE(ANE
ERITEBR2BAB(E R
ARIRERRIN B o

FIRAFEFEHRAGER -
BREEHXRBEZHAEM TR
ABREZMSER(TAREGA
B)/H -

Level 1 and total

F1RREE
HK$°000
FET
At 31 March 2012 MR2012£3 A31H
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE
Listed equity securities IR 5 35,530
Investments held for trading HIEEERE 149,009
184,539
At 31 March 2011 R20114£3A31H
Available-for-sale investments AHEHERE
Listed equity securities ERRAES 46,293
Investments held for trading RIEEBRE 96,948
143,241
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

EZ2012F3 731 AILFE

7. TURNOVER 7. EEH
Turnover represents the aggregate of the amounts received BEFIETAYEHERKKEE - HEY
or receivable in respect of property sales and garment sales, 2#BEWA  REEZRENBEWAREF
rental income from property leasing, interest income from loan EREWAZBERRENFKIBZBE A&
financing and building management fee income during the BREFECEEB  EEBHITMOT ¢

year. An analysis of the Group’s turnover from its continuing

operations is as follows:

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Property sales v ES = 82,875 -
Garment sales IR E 76,494 =
Rental income WA 40,507 35,327
Interest income from loan financing REEFREFSMA 3,296 4,345
Building management fee income BFEEBWA 411 314
203,583 39,986
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. 7HEH
Information reported to the Group’s chief executive officer, RERDERZBNEME - 2WELEE
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of CEERERREBRITRAR ER - T)
resources allocation and assessment of segment performance EPRERINIRBRME CEE - kA
focuses on types of goods delivered or services provided. This MEBE EREEENMKABAEE
is also the basis of organisation, whereby the management has EmkRBzER -
chosen to organise the Group around differences in products
and services.
The Group’s operating and reportable segments from continuing AEEREFELEEBLRERZERH B
operations include (i) property investments, (ii) property BIE  (VERE - (VDEBR - (ii)FHE
development, (iii) investment in securities, (iv) loan financing and EVERBERVEERLAKK - HE
(v) garment sourcing and exporting. A new segment “garment 20123 A1 RIEFARKREHRBLARAME
sourcing and exporting” is presented in the current year as a REFERFFE 2 MIEREREAKK (R

result of acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 FifsE32)
March 2012 (see note 32).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

BHE2012F3 431 HIFFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 7EEN®
(a) Segment revenue and results (a) PEEXERXE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and BEERERDBOMAEEREFE
results from continuing operations by operating and IR SRR T L AT

reportable segment:

For the year ended 31 March 2012 EiZ2012F3 531 HILFEE
Continuing operations: FEICEET
Garment
sourcing and
Property Property  Investment in Loan exporting
investments  development securities financing L Eliminations  Consolidated
EZ4 EL T R5RE LEET ERAX s &a

HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKS000
&7 &z [ &z i &7 &7

SEGMENT REVENUE AREXE
External sales IREE 40918 82,875 - 3,206 76,494 - 203,583
Inter-segment sales* AEXHREE 1,034 - = = = (1,034) =
41,952 82,875 - 3,296 76,494 (1,034) 203,583
RESULT |
Segment result NERE 28,557 35,381 (18,864) 3,120 (3,898) 62 44,358
Unallocated corporate income &A% 2 AFMA 2,79
Unallocated corporate EARZDARR
expenses (10,481)
Gain from a bargain purchase  RE—EfZNE
Pt 206,276
Loss on disposal of associates it EBE AT 2 B (114,454)
Share of results of associates ~ AEELATEE (17,957)
Finance costs BEME (2,995)
Profit before taxation il
(continuing operations) (FEEE2E) 107,541
* Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. @ DIEEEEEEURITHIS R E o
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

BHE2012F3 431 HIFFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. DEER®
(a) Segment revenue and results (continued) (a) DEEREREEE)
For the year ended 31 March 2011 EZ2011 #3531 HILFEE
Continuing operations: BEEEER
Property Property  Investment in Loan
investments  development securities financing Eliminations  Consolidated
nERE NEERE EHRE B R s )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT
SEGMENT REVENUE PRERE
External sales SRSEE 35,641 - - 4,345 - 39,986
RESULT S
Segment result NELE 307482 (4.984) 30,557 3,930 (249) 196,736
Unallocated corporate ESRZAAMA
income 579
Unallocated corporate EAR 7 NARR
expenses (10,176)
Share of results of HEBENREE
associates 21,451
Profit before taxation BB ATEA
(continuing operations) (BEEELE) 438,590
The accounting policies of the operating segments are IMTFESFTAll - ME D E 2 RTBUR AR S
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described B2 BoRER - DBEBERREH DR
in note 3. Segment results represent the profit earned by Rzah EREBEIRETHEMA -
each segment without allocation of certain interest income, Ehx - RE - BEH=RKE S e
corporate expenses, gain from a bargain purchase, loss ENRIZEE D(FBE A R EERBEK
on disposal of associates, share of results of associates KN BUARAEEZBRITHRAHER  1F
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the RERDERERBFH2L2E o

Group’s chief executive officer for the purposes of resource

allocation and performance assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

8. DEER®
(b) PEEERER

REERERNEIMAKEZLEER

liabilities by operating and reportable segment: BENT
At 31 March 2012 R2012%£3531H
Garment
sourcing and
Property Property  Investment in Loan exporting
investments  development securities financing #ERE  Consolidated
NERE NEER RERE BXmE HARK Ga
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
bz FEn FEn FEn z:23 FEn
ASSETS BE
Segment assets from REFEEEEE
continuing operations LHEAE 1,664,541 547,022 184,541 59,682 24,283 2,480,069
Bank balances and cash BERIT 403,369
Deferred tax assets ERHEEE 15,241
Unallocated corporate assets  ZAE¢ AFEE 38,965
Consolidated assets GREE 2,937,644
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabiltis from RERERERE
continuing operations LAERR 19,618 17,40 15 75 11,675 48,793
Secured bank borrowings  BEARREE 378,779
Tax payable FEfHE 39,321
Deferred tax liabilities EEHERE 166,436
Unallocated corporate 3 ANGI) [
liabilities 13,662
Consolidated liabilities GRERE 646,991
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

EZ2012F3 731 AILFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. PEER=#
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued) (b) PBEEREEE)
At 31 March 2011 R2011 3431 H
Property Property  Investment in Loan
investments  development securities financing

Consolidated

MERE MEER BHEE EREE e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets REFELE
from continuing E5 WAk
operations BE 1,167,488 538,934 143,241 54,102 1,903,765
Interests in associates  Eff & A Atz 182,740
Bank balances and BOEHRK
cash Be 73,851
Unallocated corporate 7 Ff 7 A 8]
assets BE 2,409
Consolidated assets  GAAE 2,162,765
LIABILITIES 8F
Segment liabilities REFELE
from continuing E ks
operations afR 13,590 35,515 - 70 49,175
Tax payable A 24,092
Deferred tax liabilities  {EEFIBE & 126,203
Unallocated corporate 7 ft 7 A 8]
liabilities BfE 664
Consolidated liabilities A& & 200,134
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

all assets are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than unallocated bank and cash
balances, deferred tax assets, and assets used jointly

by operating and reportable segments.

all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than bank borrowings, tax payable
and deferred tax liabilities, and liabilities for which

operating and reportable segments are jointly liable.

8.

TEER#)

(b)

&

hul[[3

TREEREESE)

RERDBRARR D BEERDEM

BRREDEBITRASER B
BBEEAREERZRD HBHLR
FRCEEI  FIEEEEHEZR
RER 2D

r,;u

iu]]

BRIRTTREE - BNRBERELEHRE
BEAREE X2 WD DIHRAE
ZBEIN MERREEAERERE
REHDE °
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
EZ20124#3 431 HIFFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Other segment information
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Continuing operations:

8. DEER®

(c) HittpEER

BIZ2012F3 531 HILFE
Garment
sourcing and
Property  Investment in Loan exporting
development securities financing REE  Consolidated
EL 25 EXRE EORK &8

HK$000 HK§'000 HKS§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FEn FEn FEn FEn

Property
investments
nERE
HK$'000
FET
Amounts included inthe  EAAESEEE
measure of segment IPRFETE
assets or segment result; 28
Capital additions BRTE 182,031
Depreciation of property, 9% BERZE
plant and equipment LiTE 502
Gain arising on changesin -~ kENEZATE
fair value of investment e
properties 5,302
Loss on far value changes ~ #{FEEHE
of investments held for ATEE
trading BB =

875 - - - 182,906
17 - - 254 97
= = = = 5,302
= 23,138 = = 23,133
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

EZ2012F3 731 HILFZ
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 7EERM#
(c) Other segment information (continued) (c) HEttpEER(E)
For the year ended 31 March 2011 EZ2011 %3531 HILEE
Continuing operations: FELCEER -
Property Property  Investment in Loan
investments  development securities financing ~ Consolidated
NERE NELRE FEARE B@E ma
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Amounts included EEEESE
in the measure of BEXDE
segment assets or SiREE
segment result: 2
Capital additions BARE 12 4 - - 16
Depreciation of M - BEK
property, plant and REE
equipment 80 1 — — 81
Gain on disposal of ~ HE&RftHE
available-for-sale REZ W
investments — — 23,936 = 23,936
Gain arising on BREMEZ
changes in fair ATEZE
value of investment Uiz
properties 370,881 - - - 370,881
Gain on fair value FIEEBERE L
changes of AEEZS
investments held s
for trading - - 2,662 — 2,662
Loss on disposal of 1% - HiE K
property, plantand ~ BEZHE
equipment BE 24 = = - 24
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
B Z 20123 31 HIFFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(d) Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (place of

domicile), PRC and Singapore.

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations from

external customers based on location of its customers

and information about the Group’s non-current assets

(excluding interests in associates, available-for-sale

investments, loans receivable, deferred tax assets and

those relating to discontinued operations), analysed by the

geographical area in which the assets are located, are as

follows:

Hong Kong

PRC

Singapore

The United States of
America

Europe

)
R
IR
EH

TEER#)
(d) HEDIEER

AEBZ2ENUREB(ER)  THE
REINE

BREPZHEMSESAEERERHE
ReXBretBREAEZMENR
B OMAKEBEZERBEECET
BE(TEEHERAER  AIHEER
B EBREN BETHELEREECD
RIREEBZEE)ZERWT

H&f

Revenue from Carrying amounts of

external customers non-current assets

RENMREFZEXE FRBEEZREE
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET & FET T
122,258 36,672 1,367,748 997,322
1,369 - 174,668 -
3,462 3,314 170,589 170,515
66,070 - - -
10,424 — - —
203,583 39,986 1,713,005 1,167,837
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

B ZE20124F3 H31 HIFFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 7EEN®

(e) Information about major customers
Information about major customers
Revenues from continuing operations from customers of

the corresponding years contributing over 10% of the total

revenue of the Group are as follows:

(e) EEXFZEH
TEEFZEH
REFEREXBZEPNEBAFER

BASEGEEEHERBI0% A EzEE
B

2012 2011

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Customer A' ZEA 62,534 =
Customer B? EFB® * 4,783
Customer C? 2EC? & 4,200

Revenue from garment soucing and exporting.
Revenue from property investments.
The corresponding revenue does not contribute over 10% of

the total revenue of the Group in the respective year.

LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF ASSOCIATES

At 31 March 2011, the Group had 31.70% equity interests in
Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited (“Easyknit Enterprises”), a
company also listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Easyknit Enterprises and its subsidiaries (collectively the “EE
Group”) have been accounted for as associates of the Group. As
set out in note 32, the Group’s interests in Easyknit Enterprises
increased to 50.11% on 25 October 2011. The Company
has obtained control previously held over the EE Group with
effect from 25 October 2011, which became subsidiaries of
the Company. The Group’s interests in the EE Group were re-
measured based on the fair value of the shares of Easyknit
Enterprises held by the Group. Accordingly, a loss on disposal

of HK$114,454,000 was recognised in profit or loss.

' RERBREOKKZEESE -

P OREAMEREZEXE-

Y ABERBRYRAREBEERRA
SEBEREEB10% AL -

HEBERNEZEE

R2011F3A31AE  AEERKFAKREE
SEAERAR([KEEE])Z31.70% KA
Bw R RRBXAERETZAE X
EEELENBRARABIAKREEER])
DASE 2BE R ESIER - tAPHFE32 T -
R20115108258 * REBRKkEE %
ZHEREINES0.11% - B20114E10 525
A RRABMGKEEXEE 24 -
MEARARZHBAR - ARERKEE
XEERABRBEASERBECKBEE
ROz ATFEEFHAE Bt HEEE
114,454,000 8 T E NE &R TER ©
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

E2201243 531 HILFE

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM

10. REFERERB 2 AFER

CONTINUING OPERATIONS )
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Profit for the year from continuing REFELEEL L
operations has been arrived at REZRH
after charging: B0k -
Directors’ remuneration (note 11(a)) EE=Me(Ht11(a) 5,968 4,365
Other staff costs, including retirement HMB TR » BIEERIK
benefits costs BRI A 9,136 5,390
Total staff costs B TR AN 4858 15,104 9,755
Auditor’s remuneration ZERT BN & 1,775 1,538
Cost of inventories and properties BEERART ZFERA
recognised as expense K% 113,908 -
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRE
equipment ZIE 927 81
Loss on disposal of property, plant and ~ HEWE¥ - FE K&k
equipment Z B8 - 24
and after crediting to other income: WEREARAGTA
Dividend income from listed investments B L& & 2R 2 A 4,300 3,959
Bank interest income RITHBUA 2,590 3
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Information regarding directors’ emoluments

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for

the year ended 31 March 2012 are as follows:

1. EEREEZHE

(a) ERESHE2EHR

HZE2012F3A31HIEEEARARNAE
SMEEIMT ¢

Non-
executive
director  Independent non-executive
Executive director F4T director
HTESE E= BUKHTES
Kwong Tse
Jimmy Lui Koon Wing Jong Tsui Hon
Cheung Yuk Ho Yan, Chiu, Koon Chun Tam
Tim Chu  Candy Ricky Sang Kong Chun Total
BRA BIk EBEUM  #KkE HEE #EE  BEF Y
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tér FErn TExr FErn TEr FEr  FEr  TEx
Fees VR = - - 170 120 120 120 530
Other emoluments ~ E A&
— salaries and -5k
other benefits Hb2aE 1,395 3,505 442 - - - - 5,342
— retirement — BKEF
benefits BEEEA
schemes
contributions 12 67 17 - - - - 96
Total directors’ o
emoluments Gk 1,407 3,572 459 170 120 120 120 5,968
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

EZ2012F3 731 AILFE
11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 1. EEREEZME )
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Information regarding directors’ emoluments (a) ERESME2ERE)
(continued)
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for HE2011F3A31ALEEARARAE
the year ended 31 March 2011 are as follows: EMS AT ¢
Non-
executive
director Independent non-executive
Executive director T director
WTES EE BUERTES
Kwong Tse
Jimmy Lui Koon Wing Jong Tsui Hon

Fees Lok
Other emoluments ~ EALE &
— salaries and - ek
other benefits Hofh2AE
— retirement — BKEF
benefits BEEEA
schemes
contributions
Total directors’ o
emoluments k]

Cheung Yuk  Ho Yan, Chiu, Koon Chun Tam

Tim Chu Candy Ricky Sang Kong Chun Total

BRR  BIR  BAM  #AE  HEE  BRE BE s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000
AT  TET TET FET  TAT  TET TAT TER

(Note)
(Hz)

- = - 100 100 100 100 400

960 2,650 272 = = = = 3,882
12 60 11 = = = = 83
972 2,710 283 100 100 100 100 4,365

Note: Appointed on 5 May 2010.

HfiE - 1R201045 A5 HE(E ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B ERM T

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

B Z2012F3 731 AIEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 1M.EEREEZHME )
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Information regarding employees’ emoluments (b) EHREEME2ER

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the
year included two (2011: two) directors. The emoluments of
the remaining three (2011: three) highest paid individuals,

not being directors, are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits Hre REMER
Retirement benefits schemes RINBFFTEIER

contributions

FR - AEEREEEHATEE2S
(20115 : WA )ESH - H#Rr34 (2011
F:3R)NWHEFZHRRFALTZHE
HImT

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FAT
2,338 2,604

73 80

2,411 2,684

The emoluments of these employees fall within the

following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,00078 7T
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7T £ 1,500,000 78 70

ZEREZHMEN T THIRHE

Number of employees

BEAY
2012 2011
3 2
= 1
3 3

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors and the other five highest paid individuals,
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss in office. In addition, during both

years, no director waived any emoluments.

RREAR FEEREXNHETES
FEMSERSHAL  ERMARE
MAREE R 2 REIERRERB 2
- I RMFEAR - RBEEFHE
EEE -

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2011/12 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mEMBRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
EZ20124#3 531 HILEE

12. TAXATION CHARGE

Continuing operations: SEICEET

P B

The charge comprises:

Hong Kong Profits Tax BENER

Charge for the year REERX
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions B mlE 2 B
Charge for the year AEERYE
Deferred taxation (note 30) EERRIE(HT7730)
Charge for the year REERX
Tax charge attributable to the ARAREMBERAZ
Company and its subsidiaries FE(ERHIAR X

12. HERA X
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
2,306 —
218 237
2,524 237
2,803 49,268
5,327 49,505

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for the year.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for
the year ended 31 March 2011 as the estimated assessable
profits for that year were wholly absorbed by tax losses brought
forward.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from
1 January 2008 onwards.

No provision for PRC Enterprise income tax had been made as
the Group had no assessable profit for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

BEAMNGREAFE R ERT G N
16.5% 5T °

HZE2011F3A31 BILFE ZE:tERT G
FIE AR R IEEE 2 IS - BUSAMHE
BRBFIEH o

REFRBEAMEEREREEEMER])
REOEMBHRZERIEDN  AEBRE
ZHBEARE2008F1A1HRBRZHEA
25% o

EARE R 8 FE AL ERRTEM - &
PEHRR B EMAEH -

thRIA 2 BTV IR BB R)A BRI R

o

Ot

KEEREEERAT 2011/12 FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B ERM T

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

12. TAXATION CHARGE (continued)

Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the results per

12. BEBA X (@)

AEEHARY BG A2 AKREREE Y

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows: BROOT ¢
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Profit before taxation (from BRE AR
continuing operation) (REFBLZED) 107,541 438,590
Tax charge of Hong Kong Profits Tax at & &BFIEHH = 16.5%
16.5% (2011: 16.5%) (20114 : 16.5% )5t Z 2
HIEF X 17,744 72,367
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for NEHMFFHS 2
tax purposes El-7d 22,418 693
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax  HEAZRFHBAZ
purposes h-7 (37,018) (9,459)
Tax effect of share of results of associates 7 /EEES A AIEE 2 HIBEFE 2,963 (3,539)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBIEEBE 2 HIEATE 567 797
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BRBERERAHEESEL
previously not recognised HIERE (1,531) (228)
Release of deferred taxation arising from  HEREER R 2
disposal of an investment property EERIA = (11,187)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries &R E Al a7k %18 2 i B A &
operating in other jurisdictions PMEREZE /28 184 61
Taxation charge for the year REERHBERT 5,327 49,505

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2011/12 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mEMBRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
EZ20124#3 431 HIFFE

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the garment sourcing and
exporting businesses operated by Mary Mac Apparel, Inc. (“Mary
Mac”), a then wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, ceased
substantially and Mary Mac was subsequently dissolved during

that year.

The results of the discontinued operations included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and

consolidated statement of cash flows are set out below.

Profit for the year from the discontinued operations was

analysed as follows:

Profit from garment sourcing and exporting 38 B Mary Mac Z %88 &
operations of Mary Mac for the year H AKX K ES 2 AE R

13. CRIEREEHK

H Z£2011F3 8318 It FZ N #EMary
Mac Apparel, Inc.([Mary Mac])#&#& 2%
BRHOKKERE A5 K LE R Mary Mac
BERERFERLE

EEREFAEARAERIGEARERER
ZERIEEEZBOREHIIMT

REBRIEEEER C RER RN 2 D0
T

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FAT

- 226

KEEREEERAT 2011/12 FH
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The results of the garment sourcing and exporting operations of

Mary Mac for the year, which were included in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income, were as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I EL R AE )
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
EZ20124#3 431 HIFEE

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 13. BRI REXK »)

EREEGAEZERER ZMary Mac Z %
BRHOXEBZANFEEENT ¢

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Revenue S - 2,138
Cost of sales $HE AR = (1,001)
Gross profit EH = 1,137
Other income Hal A - 629
Distribution and selling expenses ISHAR AR = (233)
Administrative expenses 1THA X = (1,307)
Profit for the year from discontinued RABIERFEE AER
operations attributable to owners of the ~ KA R IFEEERK 2
Company REFRF = 226
Profit for the year from discontinued REEKRIEEEEL 2
operations includes the following: REFHNBE THEHE
Directors’ remuneration S - -
Other staff costs, including retirement HMBETRA  BFERIK
benefits costs & F K 7R = 769
Total staff costs BT A B — 769
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN B 2 - =
Cost of inventories recognised as an EERBRIIEE
expense B - 1,001
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BEREHEZ
equipment e = 10
Loss on disposal of property, plant and ~ H&%E « BiEM&E2
equipment B8 - 74

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2011/12 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I E e )

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

BHE2012F3 431 HIFFE
13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 13. ERIEREXK »)
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cash flows from discontinued RECKRIEREER
operations RERE
Net cash used in operating activities ARG EER s HE 58 = (644)
Net cash outflows HEmLFaE = (644)
14. DIVIDEND 14. R E
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Dividends recognised as distribution REREBRAREZRE
during the year
Final dividend for financial year ended BE 201143 A 31 B I
31 March 2011 of HK$0.12 per share FEZ R E AR
(2011: nil) 0.1287(2011 4 : £) 9,530 -
Interim dividend for financial year ended EE20129F3 A31 HILHE
31 March 2012 of HK$0.10 per share FEZHHREAFR
(2011: interim dividend for financial year 0.10/87C(2011 4 : = 2011 F
ended 31 March 2011 of HK$0.08 per SA31 BIEMERFE 2R HRE
share) AE%0.08% L) 7,942 6,354
Special dividend for financial year ended EE2011F3 31 ALEHBFE
31 March 2011 of HK$0.50 per share 2RIk EAER0.50 %8 T - 39,710
17,472 46,064
Dividend proposed REEZR
Proposed final dividend for financial year BZE2012F3 A31 B IEMEBEE
ended 31 March 2012 of HK$0.04 per BREZARPRER/ER0.04E T
share (2011: financial year ended 31 March (20114 : #Z% 201143 A31H
2011 HK$0.12 per share) IEMBFEEAETR0.12ETT) 3,177 9,530

KEEREEERAT 2011/12 FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B ERM T

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

14. DIVIDEND (continued)

The final dividend of HK$0.04 per share in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$0.12 per share) has been
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to
approval by the shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming

annual general meeting.
15. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
For continuing and discontinued operations:

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to

owners of the Company is based on the following data:

14.

15.

BRE#)

BEEHZ 201243 531 BIEFE 2 5% 0.04
BT AL E (201145 : BAR0.12787T)E
HARAESEZTBRNEERREFAS
FBRRARRBREZBE -
BERERER

REFHEACERCRILEEEE .

ARREEHE ARG ZERERENTIR
BUATERMGE

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFET
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings tEREREF = 2 2F
per share (profit for the year attributable  (ANQAIEZHEE AERZ
to owners of the Company) REFHEF) 96,789 389,311
2012 2011
Number of shares & E
Number of shares in issue during the year, HistE&MREREF
for the purpose of calculating basic & < NERNE ST
earnings per share g A 79,420,403 79,420,403
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I E e )

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

EZ20124#3 431 HIFFE

15. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 15. BREAXBF (2
From continuing operations: REBESEFEK !
The calculation of the basic earnings per share from continuing RARERFEABLKREEELEEK
operations attributable to owners of the Company is based on FREKXBF DEEATERTE ¢

the following data:

Earnings are calculated as follows: AR ENT
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET

Profit for the year attributable to owners ~ AAFERFE AEE 2

of the Company REFRF 96,789 389,311
Less: Profit for the year from discontinued & : N2 Al#EzE A AL
operations attributable to owners REERIEEEER
of the Company REEHER = (226)

Profit for the purpose of calculating basic Lt Z 5k AL L £

earnings per share from continuing ZEBRERBFME 2
operations ikl 96,789 389,085
2012 2011

Number of shares B EE
Number of shares in issue during the year #EtEFRERRFM S

for the purpose of calculating basic ZRERNBET

earnings per share RimnE A 79,420,403 79,420,403
No diluted earnings per share is presented as there is no B A2 &) A E 4 2 A0 4 A R AT (0 2 7
potential ordinary shares of the Company outstanding during TaRE W25 EREERF
both years.

KEEREEERAT 2011/12 FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE @

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

15. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

16.

From discontinued operations:

Basic earnings per share for the discontinued operations was
HK$0.003 per share for the year ended 31 March 2011, based

on the profit for the year from discontinued operations of
HK$226,000 and the denominators detailed above for basic

earnings per share.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group received
rental income of HK$251,000 from related parties/persons
deemed to be “connected persons” pursuant to Chapter
14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange, being entities controlled by certain
relatives of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, her spouse, Mr. Koon Wing
Yee, and her daughter, Ms. Koon Ho Yan, Candy. Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu is a director of the Company and is also one of
the beneficiaries under a family trust which holds 36.74%
(2011:
March 2012. She also holds 21.95% (2011: 21.95%) equity

36.74%) equity interest of the Company at 31

interest of the Company through an entity wholly-owned by

her.

During the year, the Group had the following transactions
with the EE Group when Easyknit Enterprises and its

subsidiaries were associates of the Group:

HE KA

Rental income

15. BREXRBF %)

16.

REERILEERH

BZE201MF3A3BLEFEDRIKELEE
B2EBRERNRFAER0.003B T« It
IREREERELEER 2 AFE R
226,000 B L R A EEBEREARRT 25
BimEtE o

FBE

(a)

(b)

AIRG/ BEXS

BE2011F3A31ALEFAN  AEE
WEREEA LT/ R AT E AR RIS
UAERAIBEALTIZAL(HEE
Kit ERBEKELALE  REZR
BRItz ETHRBAMES 2 EEE)
HE WA 251,000 EEHKRL TR
ARBEZERAB—ERIKEFTN2012
F3A31HFE KRR FI36.74% (2011
F:36.74% ) EmXmAZ— o WINE
B-HHE2EREZARMBAEALDA
21.95% (20114 : 21.95% )z o

FRBKEEXRREMNBAF ?%Zr'i
ERERRE  AEEEKEERSE
ETZRHWT

I%W

2012
HK$’000
FHET

2011
HK$’000
FAET

1,448 2,275
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

()

In January 2010, the Company entered into a consultancy
agreement with Mr. Koon Wing Yee for consultancy
services provided by Mr. Koon Wing Yee to the Company
for a fee of HK$498,000 per annum which shall be payable
in arrears by twelve monthly instalments of HK$41,500
each. The consultancy agreement was for a period of
one year commencing on 15 January 2010 and expired in
January 2011. Consultancy fee paid and payable to Mr.
Koon Wing Yee during the year ended 31 March 2011
amounted to HK$394,250. In January 2011, the Company
and Easyknit Enterprises each entered into an employment
contract with Mr. Koon Wing Yee to act as general
manager of the Group and Easyknit Enterprises for a salary
of HK$50,000 per month. The employment agreements
commenced on 21 February 2011 but may be terminated
by either party at any time by three months’ notice. The
remuneration of Mr. Koon Wing Yee as general manager
of the Group during the year ended 31 March 2012 was
HK$939,000 (2011: HK$64,000) and was included in the
“compensation of key management personnel” in (d) below
in respect of his employment as general manager of the

Group with effect from 21 February 2011.

16. AEALRSE BERF#)

(c) 72010517 AREHEEKERER

VBB E  BkE LA RMAER
R TARRF - GFKERE R 498,000
B BEEAMB0ETS T Y
- ZERBEABR—F - H20105F1
A15BHEBER2011F1 AR - &
E2011F3A31ALEFEEN RER
BKE K E 2 BRI E R 394,250 7T °
R2011FE1A - RRARIEXKEEES
RIREKELET I RARE  LAK
50,000 B TRAKATEE R KEEE
SR ZERAGEB2011F2A
21HM%R - BAHEREFAN—F4HT
ZEABAMKIL - BE2012F3 A
MBEFREXBRAEEREIER A
B 7 B £ £ 939,000 JT(2011 4
64,0008 ) R EHMEEKELLEH
0MEF2A21HERRASE 2 K
BEBEENTAEZIZTEERASR
ZEBIA o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mEMBRRWME

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

management during the year was as follows:

Short-term employee benefits ySR-lil=PEtil
Salaries and other benefits e RHEA RS

Contribution to retirement benefit RSV UR TP A
schemes

16. AEALRE BERF#)

d EEEEASZEHM

EENHEMTIEEENERNFAZHE

LINNE
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET
8,563 6,953
213 176
8,776 7,129

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee and the
executive directors, respectively, having regard to the

performance of individuals and market trends.

EERTETBABZME D R B E M
ZEGRHTESRRENALZRE
EMGBEMETE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

b S T EL Y )

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

B E 20123 531 HILEE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. 9% - BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures and

Leasehold  equipment Motor  Construction
properties & £B vehicles in progress Total
ok Rt RE EEIR fax
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAT AT AL FET AT
COST A
At 1 April 2010 "2010F4 518 3,319 3,263 - - 6,582
Additions hE - 16 - - 16
Eliminated on disposals R E RS - (671) = = (671)
At 31 March 2011 ®2011E3 A 31H 3,319 2,608 - - 5,927
Exchange realignment AR - 1 4 111 116
Additions NE = 69 806 - 875
Acquisition of subsidiaries KEENB AR
(note 32) (H#32) - 234 265 10,384 10,883
Transferred from properties held B ERF{EHE
for development for sale BENE
(note 22) (Hz22) 12,774 - - - 12,774
Transferred from investment ERRRANE
properties (note 18) (H1i£18) 36,500 - - - 36,500
At 31 March 2012 R2012F3 A 31 A 52,593 2,912 1,075 10,495 67,075
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ Rif#&
At 1 April 2010 20104511 1,113 3,134 - - 4,247
Provided for the year TEFEAE 59 32 - - 91
Eliminated on disposals R BB - (573) - - (573)
At 31 March 2011 R2011 53 A31H 1,172 2,593 - = 3,765
Exchange realignment B AE - 1 3 - 4
Provided for the year TERRE 613 79 235 = 927
At 31 March 2012 R2012%3A31H 1,785 2,673 238 - 4,696
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2012 R2012%3A31H 50,808 239 837 10,495 62,379
At 31 March 2011 R2011E3 8318 2,147 15 - - 2,162
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mEMBHRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

B ZE201243 731 HIFFE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis

according to the following useful lives:

Leasehold properties Over the duration of the leases or

fifty years, whichever is the shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 51to 10 years

The carrying value of leasehold properties shown above

comprises:

Properties situated in Hong Kong under: [IAEBZ ¥

Long lease REATHA
Medium-term lease AR 40

17. 9% - BERRE®

TREEYE - BERRBRERZTRESN
BUERERIBIA T 2 AERFHEITE

GEROEIES BREOZFHER+F - U

REETE
Hfh - BB 3Z 104
B
A 5Z 104
A ERLEZEMERRE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET &
12,646 —
38,162 2,147
50,808 2,147

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group transferred
certain properties from properties held for development for sale
of HK$12,774,000 to property, plant and equipment since there
is a change of use of the property for owner-occupation rather

than for sale in the ordinary course of business.

BZE2012F3 A31 HILFA « AREEYZE
ReRERMFEEREBBEANLE - K
EEERBELEREMHE12,774,000 8 T8
BETUEZNE BEREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mEMBRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
EZ20124#3 431 HIFFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FAIR VALUE

At 1 April 2010

Exchange realignment

Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss

Disposals

At 31 March 2011

Exchange realignment

Additions

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32)

Transferred from properties held for development
for sale (note 22)

Transferred to property, plant and equipment
(note 17)

Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss

At 31 March 2012

18. REY ¥
HK$’000
FET
AFE

R2010F4 A1H 866,372
B B 16,382
RIERER 2 A FEEM 370,881
HE (87,960)
A 201143 431 H 1,165,675
B 5, 35 1,875
RE 164,031
WEEHI B AR (A2 32) 317,703

ERERELERRYE
(Kiat22) 14,540

WRZENE - BEREZE
(Biat17) (36,500)
RE&ER A FEEM 5,302
M201263A31H 1,632,626

During the year ended 31 March 2012, investment properties

HZ2012F3A31HIEFEARN EXEE

with fair value of HK$36,500,000 being leased to the EE Group
were transferred from investment properties to property, plant
and equipment upon Easyknit Enterprises becoming a subsidiary
of the Company. Also, during the year ended 31 March 2012,
the Group transferred certain properties from properties held for
development for sale of HK$14,540,000 to investment properties
upon the change in use evidenced by commencement of

operating lease of respective properties.

ERRALDE—HBHBRAK  RTEEAR
36,500,000 B THHTKEEXEEZRE
MERBENEEBREME  BERSE -
Rl BZ2012F3 31 HILFA - £HE
MEZRERORRBIERERER K5
B R R E B R F 414,540,000 8 7T
ZETHEZREME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mEMBERRHMETE @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
EZ20124#3 531 HILFEE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March
2012 and 2011 and dates of transfers were arrived at on the
basis of valuation carried out as at these dates by the following
independent firms of qualified professional property valuers not
connected with the Group. The valuations were arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties and by reference to net rental income allowing for
reversionary income potential using the applicable market yields

for the respective locations and types of properties.

Location of investment

Name of valuer properties

At 31 March 2012

Knight Frank Petty Limited Hong Kong and PRC
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited Hong Kong
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung (SEA) Pte Ltd Singapore

At 31 March 2011
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited Hong Kong
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung (SEA) Pte Ltd Singapore

All of the Group’s leasehold interests in land held under
operating leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties.

18. REW X »)

AEBN2012F 12011 F£3 31 A R E
BRARZREMERFAEDNE T EREE
BEBEZBIABREEYEMEMITHR
ZEHETHEIELEEE - ZSHEDK
SERENEZTHERRERSERAER
mERE AR ERNERR BB
BERAGE 2 S KAFHE -

REME R
fEEATER it

M201263A31R
R TBR AR BERAE
BB ET RERNERAR G
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung (SEA)  #7h03%
Pte Ltd

R2011E3A31H

AR AR EERERD A BA

DTZ Debenham Tie Leung (SEA)  #7/0%
Pte Ltd

AKERARKEHAOETRIES < it
BOEE AR FEEAGERIEREY
ESTl
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I E e )

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

EZ2012F3 731 AILFE
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. REW ¥ %)
The carrying value of investment properties shown above A EREY 2 REEDIE
comprises:
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Property interests situated in R BEBZYE
Hong Kong under: TR
Long lease REFEL 518,100 250,000
Medium-term lease FRERFA LY 779,780 745,160
1,297,880 995,160
Property interests situated in the PRC A fh Bl 2 )%
under: Rt
Medium-term lease HHITE A 164,157 -
Freehold properties situated in ALPAFT AN 2 8
Singapore /S 170,589 170,515
1,632,626 1,165,675
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. i N A
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Listed securities in Hong Kong, at cost R&BEMZESH » KA - 200,029
Share of post-acquisition losses DMEWEEERE = (24,194)
Share of translation reserve D IE L = 10,477
Share of property revaluation reserve DIEEEGFEE - 12,878
Unrealised gain on disposal of certain ~ H&E&ETHEEL EAOKKZ
garment sourcing and exporting NElZ RERM
companies (note a) (Miiza) = (16,450)
- 182,740
Market value of listed securities AR HFZTE - 68,964
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

19. k& N a2

AEEBERR M BERREIIINT -

associates is set out below:

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE7T
Total assets BEE - 702,005
Total liabilities Bmaff - (73,643)
Net assets BEFE - 628,362
Group’s share of net assets of AEENEHE AR EESFE
associates - 199,190
Turnover (note b) EEE(MTD) 207,125 347,992
(Loss) profit for the period/year (note c) AR /ARG (B ) &EF (At c) (57,991) 65,060
Group’s share of results of associates ~ ANEff] /ARNEEAEE 2 G
for the period/year (note d) R R REE (Mt d) (18,508) 20,624
Realised gain on disposal of certain HEETHEBRHAKKAR
garment sourcing and exporting ZBER W (Hite)
companies (note e) 551 827
Total share of results of associates for ~ ZRHE /RNEE D IEH S A7
the period/year B vk (17,957) 21,451

Notes:

Wizt -

(@ The amount related to the portion of the gain on disposal by (a)

the Group of the entire issued share capital of certain garment

sourcing and exporting companies to a wholly-owned subsidiary

of Easyknit Enterprises, a then associate of the Group, during the

year ended 31 March 2010, which is attributable to the Group’s

interests in the associates.

ZeBEDBRBE2010F3A31HIEFA

Hj’%* FHREBREAKKZ A
TRATAREER 2HEAR

Faﬁ%’éﬁﬁ%"ﬁzgﬁnu&ﬁ ;

REE 2B N AR

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2011/12 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
EZ20124#3 531 HILEE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

The amount for the year ended 31 March 2012 represents turnover
for the period from 1 April 2011 to 25 October 2011 when the EE

Group became subsidiaries of the Group.

The amount for the year ended 31 March 2012 represents loss
for the period from 1 April 2011 to 25 October 2011 when the EE

Group became subsidiaries of the Group.

Share of results of associates for the year ended 31 March
2012 was up to 25 October 2011 when the EE Group became

subsidiaries of the Group.

Included in the Group’s share of results of associates for the
year ended 31 March 2011 was the Group’s share of loss from
the discontinued operations of the associates amounting to
HK$6,398,000 (2012: nil).

The amount represents the realised portion of gain on disposal
of certain garment sourcing and exporting companies during the
years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011 as a result of amortisation of
intangible asset and tax effect thereon arising from the acquisition
of these garment sourcing and exporting companies by the EE

Group.

The Group performed impairment assessment on interests in

associates as at 31 March 2011. The recoverable amounts

of these interests in associates were determined based on a

value-in-use calculation using discounted cashflow analysis to

estimate the present value of the estimated future cash flows

expected to be generated by the Group from its associates.

This calculation used cash flow projections based on financial

budgets approved by management of Easyknit Enterprises using

a growth rate of zero% and a discount rate of 5%.

19. k& N a2

Hiat (&) :

(b) HZE2012F3A3MBALEFEZEBIAE
H2011 54 A1 ZE2011410 A 25 B %Xk
EEXEERAAEBZHBARSEZE
E )

() EBZE2012F3A31BILEEZEENIRRK
H2011F4 A1 HZE2011F10 A 25 H &K
EEXCERATEBZHBRARSEZE
e

(d HZE201243ANALFEZHBHER
AIEENZE2011F10 A5 BERBEES
B AR E 2B AR

REZ2011F3A31BLEER  XEED

EHENREEREASENEME AR

B 4% F 48 & 2 7505 716,398,000 78 7t.(2012

FimE) e

€ ZEBERRNEZ20124F %201143 A 31
BEFARKBREXSERKEE THEER
HORKARMEE 2 BV EERFERTE
FEMER 2 HERE R AKKA R ZH
wmo D

AEBR 201143 A31 ApEE QR
TTRERN T - REEBHTRRSRED
MR AR B R & D RAMETEE 2K
REGREZREMMEZEREE  UE
EHERNARG L AIKOEHE - ZHENE
BRADRBKEEXEEEMBEHUERE
T RITERS% 2 BEEME
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

E2201243 531 HILFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. Hﬁﬁ%i\\ﬁl%%ﬁ(@)
Since the recoverable amounts of the interests in associates BRAEE QRS 2 T E £ EER2011F3
were higher than their carrying amounts as at 31 March A1 BZEREEARAR  ARAEERA/HE
2011, the directors of the Company were of the opinion that NEERETEZERE -

no impairment on interests in associates were considered

necessary.
As set out in note 32, the EE Group was acquired as WM FES2FTE - R2011F 108  KEEE
subsidiaries of the Group in October 2011 and the interests in EEHKNEXRANEB B AR A&
the EE Group as associates were treated as if it were disposed RKEBEEEB 2HME R ESHR A
of and re-acquired at fair value on the acquisition date. The loss EHETRKERBRUATFESERRE -
on disposal of associates as a result of such acquisition was RZREMEEZLHEHR2ARERA
HK$114,454,000 (note 9). 114,454,000 8 7T (R KIEE9)
Particulars of the Group’s principal associates as at 31 March R2011E3A31 B AEEZEEHEAH
2011 were as follows: ZEIEIT
Proportion of nominal
value of issued capital/
Place of paid up registered
incorporation/ capital held by
Form of establishment/ the Group
husiness registration Principal place ~~ Class of KEBERERARE/
Name of associate structure AL/ AL/ of operation shares held BRiRER/ Nature of business
BenazH FERREA  EOMR TEEeny RERREN BRRAEERAY FHKE
Easyknit Enterprises Incorporated  Bermuda Hong Kong Ordinary 31.70% Investment holding
E 1t i AT ARE it Lk &R
Erincipal subsidiaries of Easyknit Enterprises:
KEEF TENERT:
Chancemore Limited Incorporated  British Virgin Islands  Hong Kong Ordinary 31.70% Property investment
A B (3 Lk VESES
Clever Wise Holdings Limited Incorporated  Briish Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 31.70% Property investment
BlEERARAA i ABRAS & il S
Easyknit Global Company Limited Incorporated  Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 31.70% Trading of garments
KERRRRA il it it Hilk NKER
Gainever Corporation Limited Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 31.70% Trading of marketable
KiERERAT A B ik LR securities
Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou) Establishment ~ PRC PRC N/A 31.70% Property investment
Co, Ltd. (‘Enterprises Huzhour) R & mE TR ESY

(formerly known as Easyknit Garment
(Huzhou) Co, Ltd. "

IGER(INERAR(ENER ) (iRAGER
(M) BRAR)"
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19.

20.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

! Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise

established in the PRC, to be operated for 50 years up to 14
December 2054.

The above table lists the associates of the Group, which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected
the results for the year ended 31 March 2011 or constituted a
substantial portion of the assets of the Group at 31 March 2011.
To give details of other associates would in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB LM ZBRAES

at market value BmE

19. k& N a2

! HNEES—HRPERLIZIIERER
¥ O QEHAR T+ HE2054F 12 A 14
E| o

BEAARNEFZER  LRAVTZEAE
EMEAR REEFEHZ2011F3 A 31
AIESEZEZESBERAEER201153 A
MNEEEFENS - JIHEMEERA 2
BEEFEEMBRITR -

20. R HERE
2012 2011
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FHET
35,530 46,293
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EZ20124#3 431 HIFEE

21. LOANS RECEIVABLE

Unsecured amount
— guaranteed by outside parties and
bearing interest at a fixed rate of
5% (2011: a fixed rate ranging
from 5% to 7%) per annum
— bearing interest at a fixed rate
ranging from 5% to 7% (2011:
ranging from 5% to 7%) per
annum
Amount secured by a property and
bearing interest at a fixed rate of
4.5% (2011: 4.5%) per annum
Amount secured by properties and

bearing interest at prime rate

Less: Amount due from borrowers
repayable within one year shown

under current assets

Amount due from borrowers repayable
after one year shown under non-

current assets

21. EWE R

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET &
Eiiwii o
- BEZEERRREESX
5E(2011 5 : BEEX :
B5EETE) 2 FHx
tE 17,100 17,765
— REEEXSEETE
(2011F : H5EERTE)Z
FRIEHE
36,610 31,050
DA R R RIREE B X
45[E (20114 : 4.5[2)
ZENEGFE 5,000 5,000
DEEERRIRREEEX
MEE 736 -
59,446 53,815
A BRIRRBEEL —FN
BIERE R 2 RS TRA
X (53,721) (44,515)
BTRIFERBEEL —F&
FIEREE 2 B
fERARHE 5,725 9,300

The management closely monitors the credit quality of loans
receivable and considers loans receivable that are neither past
due nor impaired to be of good credit quality based on historical

settlement records. No loans receivable is past due at the end

of the reporting period.

All loans receivable are denominated in HKD, functional currency

FEWEK -

of the relevant group entity, at the end of the reporting period. 2 EBETIIE °

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2011/12 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

B E 20123 531 HILEE

22. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

FOR SALE

Movements of properties held for development for sale are as

follows:

At 1 April 2010

Acquired from acquisition of a subsidiary (note a)

Additions (note b)

At 31 March 2011
Additions

Transferred to properties held for sale

Transferred to property, plant and equipment

(note 17)

Transferred to investment properties (note 18)

At 31 March 2012

720104 A1H

WEMBRRIBEBA(MZa)

RE(Hitb)

R201143A31H

NE

BRERELENE

HERENE - BEREZE
(Bist17)

BREREMENT18)

R201263A31H

22 FEHERRBYX

RELERRME 2 EHMT

HK$°000

FET

400,605
15,185

123,040

538,830
63,230
(230,490)

(12,774)

(14,540)

344,256
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

22. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT
FOR SALE (continued)

Notes:

(@)

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with an outside individual to acquire
the entire issued share capital of Chief Access Limited (“Chief
Access”) for a consideration of HK$5,650,000. Chief Access held
interests in units of the building situated on the remaining portion
of Section A of Kowloon Inland Lot No. 2978 (Nos. 311A and 311C
Prince Edward Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong) (the “311A and
311C Prince Edward Road Building”). This transaction had been
accounted for as a purchase of assets and liabilities rather than
business combination as Chief Access was not a business. The

net assets acquired were as follows:

22 BELERENE &)

it -

HZE2011F3A3BLEFR - NEFEHESH
MALTETS B B - 5,650,000 T2
{8 + Y8 Chief Access Limited ([ Chief
Access]) 2 2 #f 2 #1TR7 - Chief Access
AL NLBEEAMERE 2978 5K AR Z B2 T 3D
A(EBNEAFEAEE AR K311CH)
—BERBF([ATFE31ARRINCHET )
MEEfL 2z ¥ 2 ## o A Chief Access il
TRER ZWBENBAEERBEMNTR
NEBEHTALER - BAZEEREFE
N

2011
HK$’000
FET
Net assets acquired: BABEFE:
Properties held for development FIEERYE 15,185
Amount due to a former shareholder FER — AT (9,535)
9,650
Settlement of amount due to a former shareholder by 7% 57 (e {5t — 2 B AR
the Group 9,535
15,185
Total consideration satisfied by cash and cash outflow Uk 7 R (ELE S KIF SR H R
in respect of the acquisition 15,185

The cash outflow was included in the operating activities for the
year ended 31 March 2011 as the acquisition was for the purpose
of acquiring properties held for development for sale in the

ordinary course of business.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, Chief Access completed
the acquisition of all units in the 311A and 311C Prince Edward
Road Building at a total consideration of HK$98,996,000 (including
direct costs). The net balance of HK$89,461,000, after deducting
deposits of HK$9,535,000, was included in the additions to the
properties held for development for the year ended 31 March
2011.

REEEBHBERABELEEENEZR
SREEBEEHZ2011FE3A31HILF
B2 EEESHA o

#HZ 201143 831 BILFA © Chief Access
DA% X (B 98,996,000 7 T (BIEE AR A) 72
REEAKRTE31AR RINICHREFTZAE
BA7 0 MK IL£9,535,000/8 L2 1%«
'3 %5.89,461,000/8 L2 BEEH E 2011 F
BAB HILFERIERRMEZRENR °
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

22. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

23.

FOR SALE (continued)

At 31 March 2012, the properties held for development of
HK$344,256,000 (2011: HK$538,830,000) were included in the
Group’s current assets in the consolidated statement of financial
position as it is expected that the properties will be realised in
the Group’s normal operating cycle for properties development.
These properties are expected to be realised more than twelve

months after the end of the reporting period.

At 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011, the Group performed
impairment assessment on its properties held for development
to assess their recoverable amounts with reference to valuations
made by independent qualified professional property valuers
not connected to the Group. The valuations were arrived at
by using the residual valuation method. As the recoverable
amounts of the properties held for development are higher than
their carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no impairment

on these properties is considered necessary.

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB LM ZBRAES

at market value BmE

22 BELERENE &)

1201243 A 31 B - #F{EEEE )5 344,256,000
7#71(20114F : 538,830,000/ 7T ) A LR & B FS R
ARIMEARB 2 RBEE - ZWEBRAK
SERVERRIEREEBHNER - B
ZMERBESER+—EARER -

R2012F3 A31H k201143A31H * &
SEERFIERRYMEETRENME 22
HASEEREZBUAERGEMGERMT
BT EE A RE &5 - ZERETR
BRRBEESL - BRNFERRMEZA
YEeBEaRERRERRZEEDE A2
AEEFRARELERNEETZEMNE -

8. FERERE
2012 2011
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
149,009 96,948
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

24, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables B H W TIE

Deposits paid to suppliers to be realised 1 FEREE 7 21 FAtRER
within 1 year b

Other receivables Bt YRR

24. B R Htt B R IE

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$°000
FE FET
16,575 675
5,632 —
8,824 1,776
31,031 2,451

The Group allows credit period of up to 20 days to its lessees
and up to 90 days to its other customers. The aged analysis
of trade receivables, based on invoice date, at the end of the

reporting period is as follows:

0%60H
61%290H

0 — 60 days
61 — 90 days

AEEAFEABAZEERRDE20RK
Hip=RPEOR - REEXZAH - EFHRK
AR ERRZ REITAT -

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$°000
FE FET
16,554 675
21 =
16,575 675

The management closely monitors the credit quality of trade and
other receivables and considers trade and other receivables that

are neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance at 31
March 2012 were debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$705,000 (2011: nil) which were past due at the end of
the reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
allowance. The Group did not hold any collateral over these

balances.

EEERRERES REMRUKALEE
BEXRRRRBBYRBEZES REME
BFERERFEREER -

R201263H31H  AEEZ B 5 UK
HY - BIEREE S 705,000 (2011
F:E)REBHMERAHIRER - AEEY
BERZSREAFEEAER -
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables which are

past due but not impaired:

Overdue by 1 to 60 days
Overdue by 61 to 90 days

2i@H1 =608
2iBE61Z90 H

24. ES5 R EMEWRIE %)

EBBMERRELEZERFRZREDN

mT :
2012 2011

HK$°000 HK$°000

FE7 FET

684 —

21 —

705 —

Based on the historical experience of the Group, trade
receivables that are past due are generally recoverable and as a
result, no allowance was made for trade receivables at the end

of the reporting period.

The Group’s trade and other receivables that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant

group entities are set out below:

usD e
RMB AR

REAKBZELESR CRHZESRK
FIR— R A AME - BAHLE 5 KRR

RIS AR B -

AEBENEBREERERYD
NWEZE S REMEUFIENT

BN B

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FAT
14,391 -
157 -

KEEREEERAT 2011/12 FH

141



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I EL R AE )

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

B Z2012F3 731 AIEFE

25. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25. BITHEBRREE
The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and short-term ZEHEARAEEREAZE S UARIRBITE
bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, F % AR 0.001E£3.1/£(20114 : 0.001 EE
at prevailing market interest rates ranging from 0.001% to 3.1% 0.012) 2 318 A gk 2 Bl ZIHR 2 F2 BRSRIT 17K

(2011: 0.001% to 0.01%) per annum.

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated in AEEUNEBREEERIEEEUIINZEE
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant SEZRITHEBRBESMT ¢

group entities are set out below:

2012 2011

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET TET

HKD BT 87 —

RMB AR 14 -

usD Ev 40,968 3,057

Euro BT 10,199 —

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. B 5 R HMEMNRIE

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Trade payables B SN RIA 16,164 7,659
Rental deposits received and rental B S%S RIEK

received in advance e 11,726 6,968
Deposits received from pre-sale of BEWBEFEEM L

residential units B 7,185 26,993

Other taxes payable H At JERI IR 11,070 =

Accruals and other payables TE1E & E fth FE (50 7E 12,623 8,219

58,768 49,839
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26.

27.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

The aged analysis of trade payables based on invoice date at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

0 — 60 days 0£60H
61 — 90 days 61290 H
Over 90 days 90 B £

26. EZ N EMENRIE 2

REZZRH EHRMFERREDRRZ
BRERATIOT ¢

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TET
12,219 7,659
730 =
3,215 —
16,164 7,659

The Group’s trade and other payables that are denominated
in currencies other than the function currencies of the relevant

group entities are set out below:

UsD e

ARBUEREEERNEEE NI CER
SEZE S R EMENFRNAT :

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
85 -

BILLS PAYABLE

At 31 March 2012, the bills payable are aged within 30 days.
All the Group’s bills payable are denominated in the functional

currencies of the relevant group entities.

27. ENRE

R2012F3 A31H ' BN E#E 2Rk 530
HA - "REBZBRNZEIUEEEER
BB EESE -
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28. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS 28. EIIFRITIEE
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TET
Carrying amount repayable: JEEE 2 BREE

— within one year - —FR 17,308 -
— between one to two years — —EWMEF 17,524 =
— between two to five years — —ERF 54,629 =
— more than five years — BARF 289,318 -
378,779 =

Less: Amount due within one year BRI B E —FRE
shown under current liabilities AN (17,308) -
Amount due after one year —FRIBENSE 361,471 =

At 31 March 2012, the Group’s secured bank borrowings
carried interest at HIBOR plus 1%, with effective interest
ranging from 1.2% to 1.4% per annum, and are repayable by
240 monthly instalments. The loans are secured by investment
properties of the Group with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$677,500,000. The proceeds were used to finance acquisition
of investment properties, development of properties and

acquisition of subsidiaries (see note 32).

All bank borrowings are denominated in HKD, functional
currencies of the relevant group entities, at the end of the

reporting period.

R2012F3A318  AEB 2B EBRT
EEDRBEBRITAEREM EFE A
MEFNZTH12EE1.4E  REH 2405
FAEE ZSERNUASBEERERAEA L
677,500,000/ 7T 2 % B W EERT - Fif5
FIBEREBARENE ZEME - URK
EHRBAR(RMES2) -
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

BHE2012F3 431 HIFFE
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. R 7
2012 & 2011
HK$°000
FET
Authorised: EE

10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 10,000,000,000 AX E{E 0.1 /8 7T 2 & @ A% 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EZFTREE :

79,420,403 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 79,420,403 IR EE 0.1 78 T2 @R 7,942
There were no changes in the Company’s authorised, issued RATIZETE  BBTRSERANE R EE
and fully paid share capital in both years. B mEE o

30. DEFERRED TAXATION 30. ELFIE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) RAEENBAEEZERATERIEFIE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior BE(BE)REEFHNOT :
years:
Accelerated Revaluation
tax of Tax
depreciation properties losses Total
IEB B E EREYYES BIEER st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
T S T TET
At 1 April 2010 M2010F4 18 36 88,957 (14,843) 74,150
Exchange realignment P& 5 A= - 2,785 — 2,785
Charge to profit or loss REZER 33 57,367 3,055 60,455
Credit to profit or loss upon HERREZTA

disposal - (11,187) - (11,187)
At 31 March 2011 1201143 431 H 69 137,922 (11,788) 126,203
Exchange realignment bE H AR EE — 167 — 167
Acquisition of subsidiaries IR B A A

(note 32) (Kti32) - 23,054 (1,032) 22,022
Charge to profit or loss RIBE=HIBR 862 1,589 352 2,803
At 31 March 2012 7201243 431 H 931 162,732 (12,468) 151,195
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B ZE20124F3 H31 HIFFE
30. DEFERRED TAXATION (continueq)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, the above deferred tax liabilities and assets

have been offset.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financing reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets EEHBEE
Deferred tax liabilities ERERIBARE

30. BB E =)

B2FGARBRAERNE « EREEH A
B ERAEC R -

M BREMS - BERBERZONTT

2012 2011
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
15,241 -
(166,436) (126,203)
(151,195) (126,203)

At 31 March 2012, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$116,700,000 (2011: HK$86,238,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of HK$75,564,000 (2011: HK$71,443,000) of
such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax losses of HK$41,136,000 (2011:
HK$14,795,000) due to the unpredictability of future profits
streams, of which HK$32,176,000 was arising from acquisition
of subsidiaries in October 2011. At 31 March 2012, all of the

unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

R2012F3A31H AEBZABH AR
JH B B A116,700,0007% t(20114F
86,238,000 7T ) + AJ FA RO 4K 8 AR 2 A o
H o Fi 15 & 18 75,564,000 J0(2011 F :
71,443,000 8T ) E B RELEHHEE -
ARREEERRIRMRA - BT ERERERT
41,136,000/% 75(2011 &F : 14,795,000 57T ) 2
BMEEBRELEHIEEE - ¥%32,176,000
BILTYRA2011 F10 ARBINB A A KE
£ - R2012F3 A31 B @ KERFHIBEERE
AR AR 4t o
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EZ20124#3 531 HILEE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 31. R HEGTE

The Company

The Company has a share option scheme (the “El Scheme”)
approved at the special general meeting of the Company
held on 18 February 2002 (the “Adoption Date”). Under the El
Scheme the directors of the Company may at their absolute
discretion grant options to any employee(s) including executive
or non-executive directors of the Group or associated
companies, controlling shareholders, business partners, joint
venture partners, contractors, agents, representatives, suppliers,
customers, landlords, tenants, advisers or consultants of the
Group (including any company controlled by any of the above

persons) to subscribe for shares in the Company.

The EI Scheme is for the primary purpose of attracting, retaining
and motivating talented employees, providing participants of
the El Scheme with opportunity to acquire proprietary interests
in the Company and encouraging participants as incentives
to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as
a whole and as rewards for the participants’ contribution or
potential contribution to the Group. The El Scheme expired on
18 February 2012.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the El Scheme must
not exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the Adoption Date.
The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and yet to be exercised
under the El Scheme and other share option schemes of the
Company not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to

time.

ART

ARARIR2002%2 A 18 B ([HRMB ) &1T
ZAERTRRFHIAES L —BERER
(M EERREREE ) - REXKEBRR
BREE ARAESAUREBBERIM
EEREANEEREE AR 2 RITHIERT
B FAEECERERR EBBH 5%
EEN AAE REA EERX #
B BP - ¥x P - BHAAZERN(E
R i A TS 2 ER AR R
R - AREADEZRR -

KEEBRBERENEFIZANRARS - %
BRBEETHEES  BAEERBERE
FEC2EEERENRERARZ R
Bw - UHEB2EERRARATDRERD
ZEBEMEN  UREERARIREREZE
Bils UARIERZ2EEHASERRIE
TEERN R - k& BIRBEARIERT 217 2012
F2A18HEM °

Ak E BB RE B R ORI 2 B
FUTEREZRTZESRNEE - ~1E5ER
RERABEARR B HITIRM 10% © AKX
& RSB RE 8 R AN A A M BB
FIBERERRITE 2 BIRE T AITRE
BUOZBENHB ZERLR - FHBALA
AR ETH 30% °
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The Company (continued)

Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, shall be subject to the approval of
the independent non-executive directors of the Company.
Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
any of their respective associates, would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted to such person in the 12-month
period representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue and having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of options shall be
subject to shareholders’ approval with the connected persons of

the Company abstaining from voting.

Subject to the aforesaid, the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted to each grantee (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of
options in excess of the limit shall be subject to shareholders’
approval with such grantee and his associates abstaining from

voting.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I EL R AE )

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
B2 2012F 3731 HIFFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 1. BRE S

AT (#)

MARNREMES TETHRABRIFER
RAEMBRESECHBARL 2 BERER
B ERBARRBYFRITESHE -
MAAABRFEREIBUIFRTESHA
AREEZSECHEARLEMAERE 8
BEERI2EASHEAR  MZEALTER
HREEE 2 EBREEBTEREETR
BEITZROLE - BEAARDAEETRNG
0.1%  RBRBERGRARLBBRBIAZE
AMERMINZARABROUB T EFTE 2R
7 1A% 5,000,0008 TH [t E#E—F
BHEREETUSIREIE - MARAEZH
EATAERARHERE -

R EXHZBRET - EEM121E A B
A AEERASRL RERL ZBERER
RBETRRARITEEBE) BT REC %
TRBBRTZRNER TEERAARAE
BIBRM 1% - EAE-SREBAZ LR Z
BREARGRRIAE  MAKAREBE
ANBERABHERS -
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EZ20124#3 531 HILEE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) ERESTE @)

The Company (continued)

The offer of the grant of options must be accepted within 30
days from the date of offer with the payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1. The exercise period of the share
options is determined by the directors of the Company and
shall not expire later than ten years from the date of offer.
The subscription price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer; (i)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the
date of offer. Unless otherwise determined by the directors of
the Company, there is no minimum period for which an option

must be held before it can be exercised.

There was no share options outstanding at 31 March 2012 and
2011 or at any time during the years ended 31 March 2012 and
2011.

Easyknit Enterprises

On 6 June 2002, a share option scheme (the “EE Scheme”) was
approved by the shareholders of Easyknit Enterprises. Under
the terms of the EE Scheme, the board of directors of Easyknit
Enterprises may, at its absolute discretion, offer options to any
employee (full-time and part-time), director, supplier, consultant
or advisor of any member of the EE Group to subscribe
for shares in Easyknit Enterprises subject to the terms and
conditions stipulated therein. The EE Scheme is valid during the
period of 10 years commencing 6 June 2002, unless otherwise

cancelled or amended.

AR (#)

BRHBREEZZVEHEZAHB0AN
B U RHERBARE1ET - BREZ
TEHARAAEFRE  RTERERR
ﬁa%+¢&uwo AEERANRERE
CEABERATZER2&SE ()R
mxﬁH%F%xﬁﬁﬁztEﬁFﬁ%
2 ARARG 2 WTHE () BREERED
BERAEEXARBIAEL 2 BRRE
KD 2 AR EIRMD 2 FHWTE ¢ K (i) B
EZEBELARAARRMN ZEE - RIEAA
REFRTET  BRIBRENTERNLE
WRFA 2 &EHR -

7220124 % 2011 43 B 31 B R & £ 2012
F% 2011443 A31 B ItFETMBEAEE
RITEERERAE -

KBEE

200266 H6H - kEBEERF#/AE B
BREE(XEEXBREAED - BB
KEEEBRENE KGR KEEXES
SRRABHBERE  BREMAEZHRK
EHRXEEXSEEMKE AR ZEME
B(2BsRE) EF - HER BERAXA
AABRLIREXEEERD 2 ERE - &
EEEBREERIEAE A A B

LRI 2002456 A6 BB 10 FHE A
—BER -
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) ERETE e

Easyknit Enterprises (continued)

The purposes of the EE Scheme are to attract and retain the
best available personnel, to provide additional incentives to
eligible participants and to promote the success of the business

of Easyknit Enterprises and its subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under
the EE Scheme must not (when aggregate with any shares to
be issued under any other share option schemes of Easyknit
Enterprises) exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of

adoption of the EE Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of
the share options granted to each eligible participant of the EE
Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of Easyknit Enterprises in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting of Easyknit Enterprises with such

grantee and his associate(s) abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of the share options is determined by the
board of directors of Easyknit Enterprises and shall end on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant
of the options. There is no specific requirement under the EE
Scheme that an option must be held for any minimum period
before it can be exercised, but its terms provide that the board
of directors of Easyknit Enterprises has the discretion to impose
a minimum period at the time of offer of any particular option.
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 14
days from the date of the offer, with the payment of a nominal

consideration of HK$1 in total by the offeree.

XEBE#E)

XEBEXRBRESE S ARSI RRERER
BAR REBHNEBTRERSEE LE
BXEEXNENBARZKINER -

KEEXRBREASTIRET I RARNE
BAS(RREKEER TMEMBRER
BT RITZEMRD A G E)BERK
MABEXBRESSEA ZEETRN 2
10% °

RERA12EAREA - BxEEXBRERS
B RAERSBETREAMER T ZEBR
BE  BTRTZ&ESBRNHE M%%E
XEZETRODZ1%RBR - FAE - TRE
ﬁ@%ﬁﬁZ%b%*ﬁﬁk%%%%E%
BRAGLHETAEE  MzARARE
HWEANBHERE -

BREZTEHEKREXESZGRTE B
BAPENRHEBEREE BE10F 2AE
R KBREFEBRETENLERFEERS
TERRBTR A VARE KGR - 1
HEF AT AKEEXREESMIER - siEM
HEBERBETENR R EMZZESRR
REHATTREL AR 14 BRERRLE
Bz ZEL  TXNRBAREL1ET -
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31.

32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
Easyknit Enterprises (continued)

The exercise price in respect of any particular option of the
EE Scheme may be determined by the board of directors of
Easyknit Enterprises in its absolute discretion and notified to
each offeree but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares of Easyknit Enterprises on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date of offer, which must be a business day; (ii)
the average closing price of the shares of Easyknit Enterprises
on the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the

shares of Easyknit Enterprises on the date of offer.

No share options were granted or exercised during the years
ended 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 12 September 2011, Goodco Development Limited
(“Goodco”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an agreement (the “Conditional Share Purchase Agreement”)
with an independent third party for acquiring 61,775,205 shares
in the share capital of Easyknit Enterprises (“EE Shares”) when
Easyknit Enterprises was an associate of the Group for an
aggregate consideration of HK$18,533,000, or HK$0.30 per EE
Share. The 61,775,205 EE Shares represented approximately
11.22% of the issued share capital of Easyknit Enterprises
as at the date of the Conditional Share Purchase Agreement.
Immediately following the completion of the Conditional Share
Purchase Agreement on 19 October 2011, the Group owned in
aggregate 246,942,192 EE Shares, representing approximately
44.84% of the issued share capital of Easyknit Enterprises.

32.

BRESTE )
XBRE#)

XEBEXEFTSURABHEGBRE  ETK

EEXEBRESS CEAFTBRIEZTRE
B YHMEEXBOA HABTEENE

PROMBHBEH(VBREER)RBERAT
ZBEBRERAIKEZEERMRBRFZ
WHE: (\BEEZHEHTAELER  »
BRI ZBRRERMIKREERMD R
R ZFHWTE ¢ AR (i) 2k E B ER DR
ENRBCEAEMEREARE)

E@J@zmzisﬂ 318 &2011&3)%31 |

LK B R 2

R2011F9A128 KRB —RME2EHB
NAERERERAR([ERNE—REBY
B=FTUHBE(BEREROESZHZE]) A
WEARE —RHERAKEEERATZ
61,775,205 IR iR ([ kR EFE R 1) - 8K
8 /418,533,000/8 7T Sk EFRKEEER N
038 - REGKHRNEERZILBEH
61,775,205 R KR EEXZRNDRRKREFEE
BITIRAR 2 11.22% - BHEEIEHRNHEE
%R 2011 F10 B19 B %Ak - REBEA K
6 246,942,192 Rk R E Z R - RFE XK
EEECBIRAL 44.84% ©
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Pursuant to the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers,
the Group was required to make a mandatory conditional offer
to acquire all the issued EE Shares not already owned or agreed
to be owned by the Group (the “Offer”). The offer price for the
Offer is HK$0.30 per offer share. On 25 October 2011, the Offer
was declared unconditional and the Group had in aggregate
approximately 50.11% interests in Easyknit Enterprises and has

obtained control over the EE Group.

The Offer was closed on 11 November 2011. Immediately
after the close of the Offer, the Group owned in aggregate
445,450,671 EE Shares, representing approximately 80.89% of
the issued share capital of Easyknit Enterprises. The remaining
19.11% of the issued share capital of Easyknit Enterprises
were held by the public. Easyknit Enterprises could not fulfill
the minimum public float requirement under the Listing Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
Accordingly on 21 December 2011, Goodco entered into a
placing agreement with a placing agent pursuant to which
Goodco agreed to place, through the placing agent, 47,000,000
EE Shares to independent investors at a price of HK$0.27
per placing share (the “Placing”). Upon completion of the
Placing on 4 January 2012, the shareholding of the Company
in Easyknit Enterprises reduced from approximately 80.89% to

approximately 72.36%.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I EL R AE )

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
B2 2012F 3731 HIFFE

32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32. BB AR 2

BEEBLRAIKEREHTR  AEBLA
REBHEGRGEELN  WKEMEASET
ABEIRERBALEBETXRREERS
(TEH]) - BREORNHZENER0IB
JL° R2011E10A 250 ' ENEHhAER
e AEEEEBEN011% ZKEEE
Ba koG KEEXEEE 2 -

ZHER20MMFMANIHE L BREE
KB LR - RSB S % F 445,450,671
KEEERD RERKBEEEZRITRALD
80.89% ° F#19.11% 2 kEEXEETHK
AARBREE  kBEEREHEBMRA
FHEITRAZEERAREREZENR - &
b R2011E12821 0 ERHERENRE
VSRS ERAEEARERERSE
47,000,000 ik k EEERD THEIKRES -
SREEROERAB027TET([RE]) - B
2012F1 H4A RS - AR RIRKE
BEFIRERY80.89% REH)72.36% °
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E2201243 531 HILFE

32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32. BB AR 2

The above acquisition of subsidiaries has been accounted
for using the acquisition method. The Group obtained control
over Easyknit Enterprises on 25 October 2011, on which date
the amount of gain from bargain purchase is HK$206,276,000.
The Group further increased its equity interests in Easyknit
Enterprises subsequent to 25 October 2011 to 72.36% which did
not result in the Group losing control over Easyknit Enterprises
and hence was accounted for as equity transactions. The
difference of HK$91,032,000 between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
net amount of consideration paid amounting to HK$38,307,000,
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company. The EE Group is mainly engaged in garment sourcing

and exporting, property investment and investment in securities.

The net assets recognised at 25 October 2011, the date of

acquisition, are as follows:

INEMBAR ZKRE T AKEEAR:-
R2011F10825H A& B B WM B Xk
EEEZEG EHZHBRBREA
206,276,000/ 7C - §2011F10 A25 A% -
AEEE-—FSENMRKEEEIRESS
72.36% AR R EBRAKEREKREE
2R AMARERZAR - BABZIHE
TR RS & B R (B A F{E 5 38,307,000
BT 291,032,000 CRESER
BARAREABERADAIEZFAA - KRE
XEETENEREREOKK  WERE
RBEFREE o

NUE B 2011 E10 B25 B R BE
FEMOT :

HK$°000

FET

Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 10,883
Investment properties REME 317,703
Investments held for trading FEEERE 74,609
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H M I RIE 61,977
Bills receivable R RIE 647
Bank balances and cash RITEHRIRE 184,821
Trade and other payables 2 5 & H At fE R 5RIE (37,426)
Tax payable JER IR (14,325)
Deferred taxation EERITE (22,022)
576,867

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values of
the receivables acquired (which principally comprised trade and
other receivables and bills receivable) approximate to the gross
contractual amounts, the best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows of the receivables which are expected to

be collected.

ARRIZEERR BRUTA(ZERBEES
FEMERFIERERRE) 2 ATEEAR
AHNETERD - DARUEBBERKE 2
BYHIR &R ERE < REMET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B ERM T

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32.

Bargain purchase gain arising on acquisition:

Uk i B B X B (40

KB B 2 i I

HK$’000
FET
Consideration transferred: REEE :
— Fair value of previously held interests of — ERAKBREF44.84% R 2
44.84% in Easyknit Enterprises NEE 74,083
— Consideration paid in respect of obtaining — REGEH 2 EARE
control (from 44.84% to 50.11%) (F144.84% £50.11%) 8,709
82,792
Plus: Non-controlling interests (49.89%) 0 - IRk S (49.89% )
measured at proportionate share of the BWBEEFE 2 A TER
fair value of net assets acquired iR i s 287,799
Less: Net assets acquired B BB EESE (576,867)
Gain from a bargain purchase R B —IE s 2 W
(credited to profit or loss) (BFt A=) 206,276
Net cash inflow on acquisition: Wilg 2 35 e AJFEE
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BElEZReRERERS 184,821
Less: Cash consideration paid B BENEERE (8,709)
176,112

Included in the revenue and profit for the year is HK$79,791,000
and HK$15,260,000 respectively attributable to the EE Group.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2011, total
group revenue and profit for the year would have been
HK$410,708,000 and HK$44,223,000 respectively. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 April 2011, nor is it intended to

be a projection of future results.

BREXAFEZEEXBRAENDHA
79,791,000 7% 7T % 15,260,000 /8 7T B 7Y 7k &
BEX5H-

BMEWBER2011F4A1B =K AEE
REF 2 BEFHE RN 5% 410,708,000
K 44,223,000/ 7T ° BEERHEEG AR
# U TARERNKER2011F481 %
RATER 2 AEBEXBREE 1T REA
TEH R R EEEL AR -
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33.

34.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of the
Group were pledged to a bank to secure credit facilities granted

to the Group:

33.

EERAH

RMERR  ARBZEECERTFRITIE

AU TARERITEECERRMOT -

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Investment properties B 677,500 655,000
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 34, REHEYRH
The Group as lessee rEBERBEBA
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Minimum lease payments recognised in  FRAR B ER 2 HIK
profit or loss during the year BHRZ 1,640 1,536

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases which fall due as follows:

—ER
E-EERFR

Within one year

In the second to fifth year inclusive

RBERR - AREREAAHHELEHL

ZARSEEROMNFAZRROT

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FAT
547 1,620

70 297

617 1,917
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mEMBERRHMETE @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
EZ20124#3 431 HIFEE

34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises and directors’ quarters.
Leases are negotiated for terms of one to two years.

Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease payments
are fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for

contingent rental payments.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during FARBM < MEHS

the year WA
Less: Outgoings S
Net rental income HE WA FHE

4, REBPNZH (#)

RERNNFEARBEREETHAERE
EEMENESR - BOBERE—EMF -

BREAKEFT 2B BONKERETE
R ET LA S ML

AEBEEBHEA
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET &
40,507 35,327
(2,274) (2,064)
38,233 33,263

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted

with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year inclusive EEFRERN
Over five years bRk

RMERKR  ARBEBF LA TRARER
BB

2012 2011
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
41,571 24,868
18,306 21,233
495 -
60,372 46,101

Under the leases entered into by the Group, the rental payments
are fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments. The properties held have committed

tenants for terms of one to six years (2011: one to three years).

BEAEETL Y HONTABRE R
WESTNSABENRLHE - HEaMEZA
HBEH—ZNFEQR011F: —FE=4F)
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EZ20124#3 431 HIFFE

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

35. ERRKIE

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but 25T 4B AR
not provided in the consolidated IRA B mEp
financial statements in respect of: BEZERRY
— property, plant and equipment — % - BERR 9,850 -
— investment properties — BEME 162,000 -
171,850 =
36. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 36. RIKERIFTE
The Group had defined contribution retirement scheme (the REBRBEEARTEIBRKREMNTEI(TR
“Retirement Scheme”) for its employees and the assets of the Retdl]) RIKFTEIZEER—BUEIEA
Retirement Scheme are held under provident funds managed EEESHER - H2000F 12 A1 HEE  RIK
by independent trustees. With effect from 1 December 2000, SEIERIERH I EANHERATEERE
the Retirement Scheme has become a “Top Up” scheme to BRTERBRE T MR EAF 25851
supplement the minimum benefit under the mandatory provident NaeEtdl(laEestall) -
fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all the eligible employees
of the Group in Hong Kong.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required to RBBEeEIT BEERETRAFSMERN
contribute 5% of their monthly salaries or up to a maximum of 5% &% /51,0008 T - E S W AEEED
HK$1,000 and they can choose to make additional contributions. BIMEF - BEBARFAKREEZSRE
The employer’s monthly contributions are calculated at 5% & E 5% K& % £1,000 7 ([ 58
of the employee’s monthly salaries or up to a maximum of K)o EER65REKE AT HTE
HK$1,000 (the “mandatory contributions”). The employees are BRITRENR  IZAEFARFMEMRRZ

entitled to 100% of the employer’s mandatory contributions 100% -

upon their retirement at the age of 65, death or total incapacity.
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(continued)

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the pension scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the

pension scheme is to make the required contributions.

The aggregate employers’ contributions which have been
dealt with in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2012
amounted to HK$448,000 (2011: HK$240,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the total amount of forfeited
contributions available to reduce the contributions payable in

the future years was insignificant.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e MERRMTE
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
EZ20124#3 431 HIFEE

36. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

36. RIREFFE 2

RPBEZMBRRZEBERFERARLL
BERERARSHENKE - HWELARARS
ETEOLMERSHEIHR - FAEEZ
BEERREAREE BIELATRE 2 5K -

REE2012F3831BILFERER R B
2B T Z 48 %8 5448,00078 (2011 &
240,000/ 7T) °

PR HAR » AT PR AR AR R O 4 JE A 4t
RORWH T BBIL REK o
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

7. TEMBRA 2FH B

720124 20113 A31H » AR AIE B
MEBARZFEMT ¢

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
March 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Proportion of
nominal value of

issued share capital/

Place of registered capital

incorporation/ Nominal value held indirectly by

establishment of issued share/ the Company

and operation registered capital AQAFREEZ
Name of subsidiary SMERL,/ KL BT/ BRIRA/ Principal activities
WEAREHR RiEEHE EMBAEE AMRAEEL ) TEEH

2012 2011
Chancemore Limited # British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 72.36% ##  Property investment
Hong Kong LER1ET NERE

ABRLES/BH
Clever Wise Holdings Limited # British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 72.36% ##  Property investment
BRERERAR # Hong Kong LER1ET nERE

ERRABE/ BB
Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited # Bermuda Ordinary 72.36% ##  Investment holding
KEEXEERRAT 4 ARE HK$5,506,867 RAER

L151% 5,506,867 AT

Easyknit Global Company Limited # Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 72.36% ##  Trading of garments
KERRBRAT # &b EER2BT KKES
Easyknit Properties Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property management
KENFERBRAA A LB 10,0008 WEER
Gainever Corporation Limited # Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 72.36% ##  Trading of marketable
KEBRRAT 4 & LERoET securities
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I EL R AE )

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

7. TEMB LR ZFHE#®)

Place of registered capital
incorporation/ Nominal value held indirectly by
establishment of issued share/ the Company
and operation registered capital AAFREZ
Name of subsidiary HRA/ R BR{T/ BEIRE/ Principal activities
WEARER REEHBY ERRAEE AR AEEL TERK
2012 2011
Goldchamp International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
tEERERAR B L2 NERE
Golden Top Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
RIEEXERAA & LR NERE
Grow Well Profits Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
Singapore LER1ET nERE
ERBAES/ %
Happy Light Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
REREERAR Hong Kong EERIET Y E
EBRREE/BE
Janson Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
RBEXARATA & LR T NERE
Kingbest Capital Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 100%  100%  Property development
EREAERBRAR Hong Kong LER1ET NEER
EBRAHE/BE
Mark Profit Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment and
SHRERERAR Bl LEkoAT trading of marketable
securities
NEREREFEER

Proportion of
nominal value of

issued share capital/
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mEMBRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
EZ20124#3 431 HIFFE

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAFER

Planetic International Limited

Trump Elegant Investment Limited

AEREARAH

Wellmake Investments Limited
BEREBRAR

Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou) Co., Ltd.
(“Enterprises Huzhou”)* (formerly
known as Easyknit Garment
(Huzhou) Co., Ltd.) #

KEBROANBRAR(ANER])
(FIBAEHKCAM)ERAR) #

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
MR/ K
REE LY

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
i

PRC
hE

7. TEMB LR 2 E#®)

Nominal value

of issued share/
registered capital
BRf7/
EMBAEE

Ordinary HK$2
LERoET

Ordinary HK$1
LER1BT

Ordinary HK$9,998

(Non-voting

deferred HK$2+)

LA0R9,998 77T
(BERZEELR
2%T)*

Registered
US$14,634,274

AR
14,634,274 F 0

Proportion of

nominal value of

issued share capital/

registered capital
held indirectly by
the Company
KRARRAEZ
BRIRE/
ERRAEELA
2012 2011

100%  100%

100%  100%

100%  100%

72.36% #H

Principal activities

IRER

Finance company
BERT

Property development

NRER

Property investment

UESE

Property investment
ESE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mEMBRRWME

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
E2201243 531 HILFE

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The non-voting deferred shares of Wellmake Investments Limited
carry no rights to receive notice of, attend or vote at any general
meeting and have very limited rights to participate in a distribution
of profits and, on liquidation, to the repayment of the amount paid

up on the shares.

*ok

Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in the PRC, to be operated for 50 years up to 14
December 2054.

# These companies were acquired by the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2012. Details are set out in note 32.

## These companies were associates of the Group at 31 March 2011

(see note 19).

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected
the results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31
March 2012 or 31 March 2011.

7. TEMB LR ZFHE#®)

Y RERBABRRAZERERETEREER
BERMBRAGZBE HERSIRAE
LERE - BEAFEARENEN KGN K
RARBEREEROEHRN S -

o OANEER-RRTEKLZIERER
¥ REHMA5S0F  HE2054F12H14
H e

# ZEWBRRREZE2012F3A31HILE
EWALEEE - FRKIES2 -

# ZERARAEEN2011FE3A3E 2
BRE (RMEE9) o

ERFAFIRZARANBART  BAARE
EZER IBREFRAZRELENAE
BEEZIRHD MEZZERRA R
HEMMB AR 2HE  CHERBRT
Eo

HEN B AR R20124F3 31 He2011 4
3 A31 BETEIMABHES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mEMBRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
EZ20124#3 431 HIFFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. &A & Z B AR R &

THE COMPANY

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET &
Non-current assets FERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NI EYNGIE 1,447,888 1,760,398
Current assets TMENVEE
Other receivables H el kIR 413 250
Bank balances and cash RITREGHR IR & 141,980 71,348
142,393 71,598
Current liabilities TEEE
Other payables H {th FET 5RIR 1,249 664
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHIB A R Z0E 31,568 127,818
32,817 128,482
Net current assets (liabilities) mEEE(ARE)FE 109,576 (56,884)
Net assets EESE 1,557,464 1,703,514
Capital and reserves BARR IR
Share capital [N 7,942 7,942
Reserves (Note) G0 1,549,522 1,695,572
Equity attributable to owners of the RARERTEA
Company e G HE a 1,557,464 1,703,514

KEEREEERAT 2011/12 FH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I EL R AE )

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

EZ20124#3 431 HIFEE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. A QG Z BB R T 2)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and the Mz - ARBEZREREFARBEFE ZEEMN

prior years are as follows: T
HK$’000
FAET
At 1 April 2010 M2010F4 A1 H 1,664,948
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEEEBAETE 76,688
Dividends s (46,064)
At 31 March 2011 R201143 A31H 1,695,572
Total comprehensive expense for the year AEEEERATERE (128,578)
Dividends g, (17,472)
At 31 March 2012 201243 A31H 1,549,522

4
39. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE 39. REHBRER

REPORTING PERIOD

In April 2012, the Group entered into provisional agreements to R2012F4 7  AEBEEETE=H5 U
acquire investment properties in Hong Kong from independent KREBSHUBAUREEZRENME &
third parties at an aggregate consideration of approximately K E#17% 81,000,000 T °

HK$81,000,000.
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Financial Summary
BB ERRE

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 March
HZ3HS1HLEE
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Turnover e 524,583 465,662 35,289 39,986 203,583
Profit (loss) before taxation B Al Il (E518) 60,100  (106,390) 210,021 438,816 107,541
Taxation credit (charge) BT A(FX) 4,236 5,006 (22,663) (49,505) (5,327)
64,336 (101,384) 187,358 389,311 102,214
Profit (loss) for the year AEEHEF(EE)
attributable to: DEEE
— owners of the — R AERS
Company BBEA 64,336 (101,384) 187,358 389,311 96,789
— non-controlling — FEIER S
interests — — — — 5,425
64,336 (101,384) 187,358 389,311 102,214
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
At 31 March
R3AS31H
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FAET FET FET
Total assets BEE 1,559,398 1,443,902 1,744,172 2,162,765 2,937,644
Total liabilities waffE (89,869)  (78,718)  (128,890)  (200,134)  (646,991)
Net assets BEFE 1,469,529 1,365,184 1,615,282 1,962,631 2,290,653
Equity attributable to AAAERTEA
owners of the Company FE(E s 1,469,529 1,365,184 1,615,282 1,962,631 2,126,261
Non-controlling interests ~ JEIERRHEZE - - - - 164,392
1,469,529 1,365,184 1,615,282 1,962,631 2,290,653
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Summary of Properties
M E

As at 31 March 2012
R20124%3 /31 H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location Purpose
31k R&
1. 6th Floor, Nos. 650-652 Industrial
Castle Peak Road, and T%
No. 18A Wing Hong Street,
Kowloon
LB
BB
650 = 652 5% [

XEE18A% © 612

2. 2nd Floor, Nos. 790, 792 and 794 Industrial
Cheung Sha Wan Road, T%
Kowloon
NLEE
ROEE

79055 ~ 79257 N 794 57 212

&), Block B1 and portion of Block B Industrial
on 7th Floor, I%x
No. 481 Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
NERDEEILE 4815
T8 ZB1ER
BB D

A. REWME

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
B#gm,/
BERAEE

(sq. ft.)
(FHR)

8,514

2,997

6,992

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2011/12 Annual Report
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HREFH

Medium

R
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i
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Summary of Properties (continued)

YR )
As at 31 March 2012
R20124#3 531 H
A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) A. BREWE )
Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
Location Purpose Buem,/ Lease term
31k R# BERER HOFH
(sq. ft.)
(FHR)
4. Unit B on First Floor, Industrial 1,937 Medium
Fung Wah Factory Building, T¥ i H
Nos. 646, 648, 648A
Castle Peak Road, Kowloon
BEFH LB 646 5% - 6485
B4BASREETXKNE1ETHB
5. Roof, No. 20 Wing Hong Street, Industrial 2,657 Medium
Kowloon T¥% i Hj
NBEKEE 205/ KA
6. Fifth Floor, Industrial 2,637 Medium
No. 20 Wing Hong Street, I¥ 1 Hf
Kowloon
BEKEH 2057 518
7. Easy Tower Industrial/commercial 74,458 Medium
No. 609 Tai Nan West Street, I% % HHj
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
K #IFE1 609 5%
XEES
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Summary of Properties (continued)
MEBE )

As at 31 March 2012

R20124#3 531 H
A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) A. REWE )
Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
Location Purpose wmuemE,/ Lease term
31k Jiced BERER HOFH
(sq. ft.)
(FHR)

8. Shops 1, 2, 3 on Ground Floor Commercial 13,544 Medium
together with showcase on [EES AR ER
Ground Floor, First Floor
and Second Floor of Fa Yuen Plaza,

No. 19 Fa Yuen Street,
Mong Kok, Kowloon
NETA

TEERT195%

EEESH T2 35RER
WE 18 R2E

9. Ground Floor, No. 50 Yun Ping Road, Commercial 900 Long
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong EES R
BN
BE¥E505:H T

10. House 9, Villa Castell, Residential 2,358 Medium
No. 20 Yau King Lane, F= A

Tai Po, New Territories
MARBESE20RFRILHEIRFFE
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Summary of Properties (continued)

MEME @)
As at 31 March 2012
R20124F3 H31H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

11.

12.

13.

14.

Location

biih o

Units 1 and 2 on Seventh Floor,
Block D and Car Parking Space

No. 46 on Lower Ground Floor,

Shatin Heights,

No. 8003 Tai Po Road,
Shatin, New Territories
R 50 B KK 2 B8 8003 5%

YOATEE D FE7 42 18R A 2 5% B8 i1 |7

KEHh T Efiz
%465

Third Floor,

No. 161 Wong Nai Chung Road,

Hong Kong
BERERBE1615E312

15 Ardmore Park #04-03,
Singapore 259959

15 Ardmore Park #04-03
#7I03% 259959

15 Ardmore Park #06-04,
Singapore 259959

15 Ardmore Park #06-04
1 I03% 259959

Purpose

Jick=

Residential

F=E

Residential
F=

Residential

FE

Residential
F=

A. REWHE#)

Approximate

gross floor/

saleable area
Bwgm/ Lease term

ERER BHES
(sq. ft.)
(FFHR)

2,086 Medium

i H

781 Medium

1 Hf

2,885 Freehold

i

2,885 Freehold

=M
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Summary of Properties (continued)
MEBE )
As at 31 March 2012
R20124#3 431 H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) A. REYXx®)

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
Location Purpose wmuemE,/ Lease term
# 31t iz BRAER HOFEH
(sq. ft.)
(FrR)

15. 15 Ardmore Park #18-02, Residential 2,885 Freehold
Singapore 259959 F= i)
15 Ardmore Park #18-02
7 I03% 259959

16. Shop C on First Floor, One Victory, Commercial 2,758 Long
Nos. 1, 1A and 3 Victory Avenue, EES K
Ho Man Tin, Kowloon
NRERIXEEEFIE 15 « 1A% R 35
fsAE 15k 118 C 4

17. Blocks A, B and D on Ground Floor, Residential 8,736 Long
Blocks A, B and D on First Floor, F= = H
Blocks A, B and D on Second Floor,

Nos. 301, 301A — C Prince Edward
Road West, Ho Man Tin, Kowloon
FUBE(I XX A FiE7E 301 5% - 301A-C o
#RABRDEE

1A -BRDE

2% A -BXDE

18. Ground Floor, Commercial 580 Long
No. 148 Johnston Road, [EES R H
Wanchai, Hong Kong
BAETHETIE 14853 T

19. Ground Floor and Cockloft, Commercial 1,232 Long
No. 13 Matheson Street, [HES 3
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BRWEE 7B 135830 T R EE
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Summary of Properties (continued)
VB ZE )
As at 31 March 2012
R20124#3H31H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Location Purpose
4 R#

20. Two parcels of land at an Industrial
industrial site located at I%

the South of Hengtang Harbour,

the West of Dongliang Road,

Zhili Town, Wuxing District,

Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province

of the People’s Republic of China with
a total of six building blocks being built
MEERTERM 2 TR

PR BT & 8N 1 R L

BB SRR AT

RS AR
BETNRE TR E L REY

A. REWHE#)

Approximate

gross floor/

saleable area
Bwgm/ Lease term

BERER HOEH
(sq. ft.)
(FrR)
1,805,534 Medium
f HA
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Summary of Properties (continued)

NEBE @)
As at 31 March 2012
R20124#3 531 H
B. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT B. {EHEREYHE
FOR SALE
Approximate Percentage Stage of
Location Purpose gross site area of interest Lease term completion
it ik BRRER REEDL BOEE  THER
(sq. ft.)
(E5HK)
1. Nos. 311A-D, Nos. 313 & Residential 17,396 100% Long Under development
313A-C Prince Edward frx R ERT
Road West, Ho Man Tin
Kowloon
NEMXEATER
311AZD  313%
R31BAZCH
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